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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
2200 East Main Road, Portsmouth, Rl 02871

Richard Rainer, Town Administrator
John Menke, FinanceDirector

December 222017
To the Citizens oPortsmouth, Rhode Island

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, is hereby submitted as mandated by state statute. State laws
require that all genergdurpose local governemts publish within six months of the close of each

fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards by arfin of certified public accountants licensed to practice in the State of Rhode Island.

This report consists of management 6s represert
Portsmouth, Rhode Island. Consequently, management assumes full respessibil the
completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a
reasonable basis for making these representations, management has established a comprehensive
internal control framework that is designed to protect he gover nment s accou

or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable i
statements in conformity with GAAP. Since the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their
benefitst he Townbés comprehensive framework of int e

reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements will be free from material
misstatement. As management, | assert that, to the best of my kgewled belief, this financial
report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The Town of Portsmouthos f i nlagueiSahbhdy,&Ca,tiP€ment s
a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the amgnt audit was to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the Town of Portsmouth for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2017, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved the
following: examining, on a test basiyidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statement; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management; and evaluating the overall financial statements presentation. The independent
auditor conclded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
unmodi fied opinion that the Town of Portsmout
June 30, 2017 are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independerd auditd r ep or t
presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.



The independent audit of the financial statements of the Town of Portsmouth was part of the
broader, feder al mandated 0ASi ngbdefederaldgiatitoad de s i
agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to
report not only on the fair presentations of the financial statements, but also on the audited
government 6s i nt er uranentcwitmspecial Engphasisiod intereagcanitrolsr e q
and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are issued
separate of this report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview ahgisrto

accompany the basic financi al statements 1 n t
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. T h e duadimmedidtely Pollowihgshemo ut h 6

report of the independent auditor.
PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

General

The Town of Portsmouth, established in 1638 and incorporated as aitt@40, had a population

of 17389 in 2010 and is located approximately 20 miles southeast of Providence. The Town
occupies the northern portion of Aquidneck Island and is bordered by the Town of Bristol on the
north, the Town of Middletown on the south, the Town of Tiverton on theaedsNarragansett

Bay on the west. The Town limits extend over an area of 59.3 miles, including a land area of 23.2
square miles and an inland water area of 36.1 square miles. Routes 138 and 114 are major
highways connecting the Town tel 85, F95, Roude 24 and the entire northeast corridor. Air
transportation is available at the Newport State Air Park in Middletown which provides charter air

service to all maj or airports in New Engl and
located in te City of Warwick, approximately 30 miles from the Town. Nationwide intercity rail
passenger service is offered through AMTRAKO®S

provided by railroads, local and long distance trucking firms and bus lines.ndarby Port of
Providence provides the Town with excellent shipping facilities.

Government

The Town is governed by a seven member Town Council, elected biannually in even years, and
an appointed Town Administrator. The Town operates under a HomeCRaléer wherein all
powers of government are vested in the elected Town Council. The Council may enact local
legislation subject only to the limitations imposed by the Charter, the State Constitution and the
General Laws. Under the Charter, the Coudetlermines policy, enacts law and appoints the
Town Administrator.

The Town Administrator is the chief executive officer and the head of the administrative branch
of the Town government. The Town Administrator is responsible for the following: caoying

the policies of the Town Council, overseeing the day to day operations of the Town and appointing
all other employees, except the Town Clerk (an elected position) and School District personnel.



The Town provides a full range of municipal servicegallews: public safety protection, the
construction and maintenance of highways, streets and other infrastructure; recreational facilities,
planning and zoning, education and administrative services. In addition, the Town operates a solid
waste facility.

The annual budget serves as the foundation fo
departments of the Town are required to submit requests for appropriation and revenue estimates
to the Town Administrator each year. The School Committee issiive proposed school budget.

The Town Administrator uses these requests as the starting point for developing a proposed budget.
It is the responsibility of the Town Administrator to submit a proposed budget for the following
year to the Town Councilmoor before April 1 of each year. The Town Council holds several
budget work sessions to discuss the details of the proposed budget document. The Town Council
may revise and adopt a preliminary budget not later than 30 days after the submissionwhthe To
Admini stratorés proposed budget. I n June at
the final Town budget by ordinance.

Within two (2) weeks of the adoption of the final Town budget, any qualified elector of the town
may circulate a petidin request that a referendum be held on the final budget as approved by the
Town Council. If no petition is filed within the designated time frame, the budget is considered
adopted. If there is a petition, a referendum must be held not less thaifitkil¥5) nor more

than fortyfive (45) days from the certification of the signatures on the petition.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, major program function (e.g., public safety) and
department (e.g., police). Department heads may makanafdér of appropriation within a
department. Transfer of a major program function may be made by the Town Administrator,
provided that proper notification is given to thewn Council

Budget to actual comparisons are provided in this report for therglefund and school
unrestricted fund on pag&$0-111 and112, respectively.

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The information presented in the financial statement is perhaps best understood when it is
considered from the broader perspective ofgpecific environment within which the Town of
Portsmouth operates.

Local Economy

Portsmouth is surrounded by water which has
impressive history as a leader in the marine trades industry. There are 39 cernpaaiging

sizes located in Portsmouth engaged in marine and related services and manufacturing. The State
of Rhode Island has designated the marine industry as one of five key sectors for economic growth
in the State.

The 56acre Portsmouth BusineBark is home to a mix of light industrial manufacturing firms.
The convenient location with immediate access to Route 24 places the Park in a strategic location
for light industrial markets and labor supply. There are 23 companies located in the park.



Portsmouthds | argest employer is the I ntegrat
Current employment on the 150 acre campus is 1,175. This division is primarily involved in the
research, development and manufacture of sonar and other sHigbwhairborneslectronic

tracking systemsExcess Navy land in the Melville Marine District was approved for release to

bol ster the | ocal marine trades. i n cooperat
economic development agency) has besmking in a partnership with marine companies to
complete the transfer of the former Navy fueling facility. The prime waterfront land will be key

in stimulating expansion of the existing and new marine trades.

Pension and Other PosEmployment Benefis

Portsmouth has moved away from defined benefit type pensions. All new employees participate
in a defined contribution (401 type) plan. There are grandfathered employees who are either in a
defined benefit plan or a hybrid of defined benefit and ddficentribution plans. All pension

plans are locally administered plans, except for the Teachers who participate in the State
administered plan.

In accordance with Rhode Island General Law, the Town submitted its Funding Improvement Plan
(FIP) tothe Loally-Ad mi ni st ered Pension Plans Study Comm
57.1% asof the July 1, 2017 report. It should be noted that the Town assumes a return on
investment of 6.75%, which is lower than the recommended rate of 7.50%

Portsmouth has a net OPHiBbility of $24,697,548 ($20,759,093 for the Town and $.938.455
for the School Department). The Town has established an OPEB Trust. As of the July 1, 201
report, this trust is fundesl 1% for the Town and 0% for the School fi2etment.

Other

Portsmouth believes in transparency and the accountability it inspires. This is the second year that
the Towndbs annual audit is presented in the f
Town has redesigned its monthly budgeorept s and publ i shes them on t

with other financial data such as debt service schedules, monthly check registers and actuary
reports.

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated
savices of the entire staff of the Town and School finance departments. Credit must also be given

to the Town Council and the School Committee for their unfailing support for achieving and
maintain the highest standards of professional management ofthe Too f Por t smout hés

Respectfully submitted,

2 ) Qaudl

Richard Rainer John Menke
Town Administrator Finance Director
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Financial Section

This Section contains tHellowing Subsections:

Independent Auditors' Report

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements
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HAGUE, SAHADY & CO., P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
126 President Avenue
Fall River, MA 02720
TEL. (508) 673889
FAX (508) 673859
www.haguesahady.com

The Honorable Members of the Tov@ouncil
Town of PortsmouthRhode Island

|l ndependent Auditorsd Report

We have auditethe accompanying financial statements of the governmental actithtids)sinesdype
activities, each major fund, andthe aggregateremainingfund information of the Town of Portsmouth
Rhodelslandasof andfor theyearendedJune30, 2017, andtherelatednotesto thefinancid statements
which collectively compris¢éhe Town'sasic financial statements kistedin thetable of contents

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Managemenis responsible for the pparation and faipresentation othese financid statementsin
accordancewith accountingprinciplesgenerallyacceptedin the United States of Americthis includes
the design, implementation, and maintenancentsrnal control relevant tothe preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements thiafree from materialmisstatement whether due to frauceoror.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibilityis to expressopinionson thesefinancial statement$asedon our audit. We conducted
our auditin accordance witlauditingstandards generally accepiedhe United States of American and
the standardsapplicableto financial audits containedin GovernmentAuditing Standardissuedby the
ComptrollerGeneralof the United States. Those standards require thapilse andperform the audit to
obtain reasonablassurancabout whether the financial statements arefi®@ materiaimisstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financials t at ement s . The procedures selected depend ol
of the risks of material misstatement of fiancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making

those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentatin of the financial statemenis order to design audit pcedures thatra appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of thmemtigl's

control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit-dlsdudes evaluating the appropriateness

of accounting paties used and the reasonableness of significant accourgtilgages made by
management, agell as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriatede proasis for our
audit opinions.

11



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the busiygessactivities, each major fund,

and the aggregate remaining fund informatof the Town ofPortsmouth Rhode Island, as of June 30,

2017, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the tiésdofS
America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, the Schedule of Fundmeg$r8chedule

of Employer Contributions, Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios, and Schedule
of Employer Contributions, Investment Returns, and Employer's Net Pension Liabilisyed in the table

of contents be presented tsupplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placingasie financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required sup@mentary information in accordane@h auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States b America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtdimed) our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Irformation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town oPortsmouth Rhode Island's financial statements. The supplementanbining
financial statementsax collector'sannual report and Annual Supplemental Transparency Report (MTP2)
arepresented for purposes of additional analysiseaadot a required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplementargombining financial statementsx collector's annual regoandAnnual Syplemental
Transparency Repaare the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and otheecords used to prepare the finana&tements. Such information has

been subjected tché auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such informditiectly to the underlying
accouning and other records usedpepare the financial statememtsto the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplemergambining financial statement&x
collector's anual reportand Annual Supplemental Transparency Reportfamdy stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a.whole

12



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance witlisovernment Auditig Standardswe have also is®d our reportiated Decembe2?2,

2017, on our consideration of the Town Bortsmouth Rhode Island's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, reguletiotiacts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal cotrol over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance witBovernment Auditing Standards considering the Town dPortsmouth

Rhode Island's internal control over financial reporting and dangzs.

Hague, Sahady & Co., CPAUSs

Fall River, Massaalsetts
Decembef?2, 2017
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Management Discussion &nalysis (MD&A)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

As management of the Town of Portsmouth, we offer the readers of the Town's financial
statements this narratieeerview and analysis of the Town's financial activities fofigeal

year ended June 30, 20Me encourage the readers to consider the information presented
here in conjunction with the letter of transmittal on pagé&sof this report as well as the
Town's basic financial statements that follow this section.

Financial Highlights

A

The net position of th€ownincreased by $095802 (or 2.2%). The governmental
net positionincreasedoy $766,864 (or 1.5%) andthe businesgype net position
increasedy $328938(or 145.1%).

The goernmental activities revenudecreased from prior year byl$£51,394 (or
1.8%) and the changén net position from governmental activitiescreased from
prior year by $1217168 The resuls of govenmental activities produced an
increase in net position off$6864 in fiscal year 20T compared to a net position
decrease of 850,304 in fiscal year2016.

The business$ype activities revenue increased byl$613 (or 8.4%) and the
change in net positiofrom businesdype activities icreased from prior year by
$1417,029. In fiscal year 201, the results of busisstype activities produced a
increase in busineggpe net positiorof $328938 compared to a decrease irt ne
position of $,088091in fiscal year 206.

The General Fund (the main operating fund) reflected on a currentisheesource
basis,reported an iorease in fund balance ofi$0,107 (or 5.1%) for fiscal year
2017 compared t@ $1,377939decrease in the prior year.

The liabilities and deferredinflows of resourcesof the Town of Portsmouth
exceededts assets and deferred outflows of resources at the end of the fiscal
year ended June 30, Z0hky $50,602163

The Town's totaliabilities increased by $4,267,469from prior year. The increase
is primarily due to thamplementation of GASB 75 which replaced the OPEB
obligation with the OPEB liability, an increase of $16,936,429 as weklms
acquisition of long term debt totalir®] 2,415,000

14



Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Management Discussion &nalysis (MD&A)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to s
statements, which are comprised of three components:

1 Governmentwide financial statements

9 Fund financial statements; and

1 Notes to the financial statements

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves.

Governmemnwide financial statementsThegovernmentvide financial sttementsare designed
to provide readers with a broad overview of t
sector business.

The statement of net positopr esent s i nformation on the enti
outflows of resourcesind iabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between

the two reported aset position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving eridedting.

The statement of activitiepr esent s i nf ormation showing how t
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, régssdfthe timing of related cash flows

Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periodexamples arauncollected taxes am@rned but unused vacation

time).

Both d the governmentvide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revergms&inmental activitigsfrom
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portioasté through user fees
and chargesbusinesdype activitiey The governmental activities of the Town include general
governmentpublic safetystreets and highwaysducationpeach and recreatiorilhe business
type activities of the Town includiéne Wind Turbine Generator fund, Transfer Station fund,
School Lunch fund and Septic System Loan Program fund.

The governmentwvide financial statements can be fowordpage£6-28 of this report.

In the statement of activities, the operations of the Town are presented in a format that reports the
net of expenses and revenues of its individual funciidhs objective being to report thelative
burden of each of the Townds functions to the
expenses are separated into three categories: charges for services, operating grants and
contributions, and capital grants and contributions.

15



Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Management Discussion &nalysis (MD&A)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Overview of the Financial Statements (continued)

Fund financial statements. A fundis a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other stedéé¢ and |
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with-rélzedelegal
requirements. All of the funds of the Town can be divided into three categories: governmental fund
proprietary fundsand fiduciary funds.

Governmenal funds. Governmental fundare used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activitiem the governmentvide financial statements. However, unlike the governmeaahe
financial statements, governmental fund financialestaints focus omearterm inflows and outflows of
spendable resourceas well as obalances of spendable resoureasilable at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be usef ul-termfinareingadquiraniemtsn g a gover

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the govemiaefinancial statements, it

is useful to compare the information presentedgtmrernmental activitiegn the governmenivide financial
statements. By doing so, readers mayebeinderstand the lolger m i mpact of ttdérme g c
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statemen
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliationtabefdicii comparison
betweergovernmentafundsandgovernmental activities.

The Town maintaingdividual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmente
fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revexpesditures, and changes in fund
balances for the General Fyn@iown Capital Project Fund arfichool Capital ProjecFund, which are
considered to be major funds. Data for the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggreg:
presentationfFund data for each of these am@ajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statementincluded in the other supplementary information.

The Town adopts an annual appropriated budget for its GenerahRdr&thool Unrestricted FunBudgetary
comparison statements have been provided for the General Fund and the Schoolddepardi@monstrate
compliance with this budget. These comparison statements can be found ohilfelfEsof this report.

The basic governmental fund financialtstaents can be found @ages 33 of this report.

Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are used to account for busthikesactivities provided to the general
public (enterprise funds) or within the government (internal service funds). These exctaviti financed
primarily by user charges and the measurement of financial activity focuses on net income measurement sin
to the private sectorThe Town has five proprietary funds. The Tran§&tionaccounts for the solid waste
operationf thetown. The main transferation is located on Hedlestreet. An additional transfer station is
located orPrudencdsland to servéhe citizens living there. The Wind Turbine Generator Fund accounts for
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Management Discussion &nalysis (MD&A)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Overview of the Financial Statementgcontinued)

activitiesassociateavith the Town owned wind turbin®uringfiscal year ended June 30, 2016 the Town had
disposed of the wind turbine as it has not been in operfiropears The otherproprietaryfunds are the
School Lunch FundSummerSchool Fundandthe SepticSystemLoan Rogram Fund. The Town has no
internal service funds.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on $&§8xf this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resauiead for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds aret reflected in the governmemtide financial statements because the
resources of those funds ametavai | abl e to support the Townds o
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on Bagt%of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the gomemtwide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found on patfe$09 of this report.

Other infor mation. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report als
presents certairequred supplementary informationhich presents scheduleslaingtot he Town o s
and other postemployment benefit plans, as welldgdétary comparison schedules for the General Fund and
the School Department to demonstratenpbance with their respective budgets. Required supplementary
information can be found on pagkER)-127 of this report.
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island

Management Discussion &nalysis (MD&A)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Governmentwide Financial Analysis

TOWN OF PORTSMOUTH, RHODE ISLAND

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

Assets
Current assets $ 49535022 $ 17689635 $ 2,276,926 $ 1682256 $ 51,811,948 $ 19,371,891
Non current assets 43,249,733 37,688,674 407,138 429,083 43,656,871 38,117,757
Total assets 92,784,755 55,378,309 2,684,064 2,111,339 95,468,819 57,489,648
Deferred outflows of resources
Pension related outflows 11,487,156 13,092,363 - - 11,487,156 13,092,363
OPEB related outflows 2,467,338 - - - 2,467,338 -
Other deferred outflows 99,504 129,357 - - 99,504 129,357
Total deferred outflows of resources 14,053,998 13,221,720 - - 14,053,998 13,221,720
Liabilities
Current liabilties 28,812,708 5,729,517 2,117,238 1,808,517 30,929,946 7,538,034
Long-term liabilties 122,407,380 91,466,889 464,534 529,468 122,871,914 91,996,357
Total liabilties 151,220,088 97,196,406 2,581,772 2,337,985 153,801,860 99,534,391
Deferred inflows of resources
Pension related inflows 5,879,167 5,938,513 - - 5,879,167 5,938,513
OPEB related inflows 443,953 - - - 443,953 -
Total deferred inflows of resources 6,323,120 5,938,513 - - 6,323,120 5,938,513
Net Position
Investment in capital assets,

net of related debt 12,808,535 18,884,330 246,923 214,640 13,055,458 19,098,970
Restricted 13,224,782 5,704,732 135,043 42,925 13,359,825 5,747,657
Unrestricted (76,737,772)  (59,123,952) (279,674) (484,211) (77,017,446) (59,608,163
Total net position $ (50,704,455) $ (34,534,890) $ 102292 $ (226,646) $ (50,602,163) $ (34,761,536
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Management Discussion &nalysis (MD&A)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Government-wide Financial Analysis (continued)

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financ
position. In the case of the Town of Portsmouth, the net pos#i&0,602163) as of June 30, 201
consisting of $§0,704,455 from governmental activities and $1292from businesdype activities. For

the fiscal year ended June 30, 208(76,737,772) of the total $60,602163 in the net position is
unrestricted.

Netinvestmenin capitalasset€omprisesp13,055458 and$19,098970 of net positionatJune30,2017

and 208, respectively. This category reflects the total invested in capital assets (vehicles, equipmet
etc.) net of any related debt used to acquipitabassets. These capital assets are used to provide service:
to citizens and do not represent resources available for future spending. Although the Town's investm
in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources to repay this |
must be provided from other sourcescsithe capital asset cannot be used to liquidate tfadskties.

The second category of net position, restricted net position, represents net position that is subject
external restriction on how it may be used (i.e., special revemds fcapital mject funds and recycling).
Restricted net position as of June 30, 2@taled $.3,359825.

The current and other asset®e %$1,811,948 at June 30, 201 Of that balance 49,535022 is from
governmental activities an@R76,926is from business$ype activities. The total curreahd other assets
consist of the following: $2,240419 of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash held in escrow
$1505971 of property tax receivable 488836 of ambulance receivablesg$0,233 of receivable due
from federal and state governmer#i25,521,868 of interfund receivablasd $1424,621 of otherassets.

The current liabilities are3,929946at the end of fiscal year 2010f that balance,28,812,708is from
governmental activities and2d17,238 is from businessype activities. The total current liabilities
consistof $2,799 046 of short ternpayables$2,366,3400f shortterm payableselated to borrowingand
$25,764,560 of interfund liabilities.

The longterm liabilitiesare $22871,914 at June 302017. Of that balance #2407,380 is from
governmental activitiesnd $464,534 is from businessype activities.The total longterm liabilities
consistof $1,6232000f accrued compensated absen24,697,5480of netOPEBIiability, $71658694
of net pensiotiability and £4,892472 of netlong termliabilities.
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Management Discussion &nalysis (MD&A)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Government-wide Financial Analysis (continued)

TOWN OF PORTSMOUTH STATEMENT OFACTIVITIES

Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for service $ 5023335 $ 4,170,030 $ 1,206416 $ 1,148409 $ 6,229,751 $ 5,318,439
Operating grants & contributions 5,964,893 5,581,847 331,602 254,731 6,296,495 5,836,578
Capital grants & contributions - 250,313 - - - 250,313
General Revenues:
Property taxes 51,008,411 49,910,345 - - 51,008411 49,910,345
State aid to town 4,387,343 6,359,063 - - 4,387,343 6,359,063
Other revenue 61,917 1,452,173 - - 61,917 1,452,173
Earnings on invesments 39,911 13,433 (17,258) 7 22,653 13,440
Total revenue 66,485,810 67,737,204 1,520,760 1,403,147 68,006,570 69,140,351
Expenses
General government 5,631,833 11,012,945 - - 5,631,833 11,012,945
Public safety 13,281,332 11,371,782 - - 13,281,332 11,371,782
Public services 3,384,612 3,237,659 - - 3,384,612 3,237,659
Education 40,978,207 40,753,345 - - 40,978,207 40,753,345
Community services 1,297,889 1,290,100 - - 1,297,889 1,290,100
Interest on debt 640,732 556,894 - - 640,732 556,894
School cafeteria fund - - 752,768 711,503 752,768 711,503
Transfer station - - 682,031 569,944 682,031 569,944
Wind turbine generator fund - - - 1,193,708 - 1,193,708
Summer school - - 10,470 10,162 10,470 10,162
Septic system loan program - - 894 16,421 894 16,421
Glen manor equestrian - - - - 640,732 556,894
Total expenses 65,214,605 68,222,725 1,446,163 2,501,738 67,301,500 71,281,357
Increase(decrease) in net assets
before transfers 1,271,205 (485,521) 74,597 (1,098,591) 1,345,802 (1,584,112
Transfers in (out) - operating (504,341) 35,217 254,341 10,500 (250,000) 45,717
Increase(decrease) in net position 766,864 (450,304) 328,938 (1,088,091) 1,095,802 (1,538,395
Net position, July 1, restated (51,471,319) (34,084,586) (226,646) 861,445 (51,697,965) (33,223,141
Net position, June 30 $ (50,704,455) $  (34,534,890) $ 102,292 $ (226,646) $(50,602,163) $(34,761,536
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Governmentwide Financial Analysis (continued)

General revenuascludeall revenues not required to keportedas program revenues. The totals of
general revenues in the governmental activities fofisical year 20T and 205 were $5,497,582
and $57,735014, respectively.Included in these totals were5%,008411 and $49910,345 of
propertytaxes for the years ended Ji®e2017 and 208, respectively. Theris immaterialgeneral
revenue irthe businesgaype activitiesasit shouldbe progranfunction specific.

Expensesrepresented bjunctionandtotal $67,301,500 and$71,281,357 for the yearsendedJune
30, 20¥ and 2016, respectively. In fiscal years2017 and 2016, expensesn the governmental
activities were $65,214,605 and $@,222725, respectively. In fiscal year2017 and 208, the
businesgype activities, expenses webt, 446,163 and £,501,738 respectively

Total changes in net position were mcrease 0f1,095,802 and deease of $,538395in fiscal
years 207 and 208, respectively. The chge wasprimarily due to increases in net pension and
OPEB obligations which were partially offset by increases in education grants and contributions.

Financial Analysis of the Town of Portsmouth's Funds

As noted earlier, the Town of Portsmouth uses fawwdounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds- The focus of the Town of Portsmouth governmental funds is to provide
information on neaterm inflows, outflows and balances of spendable regsuiSuch information

Is useful in assessing the Town's financing requirembnparticular, unassigned fund balance may
serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end o
fiscal year.

At the end of the cuwent fiscal year, the Towngovernmental funds reported a combined ending
fund balance of &1,638135. Approximately 8.2% or $5,665654is available from the Town's fund
balance for spending at the government's discretion. The remaining fund balarics9@2,$81
includes 891,271 nonspendable for prepaid items, inventory and permanent fui@s 28,782
restricted to specific programs and 886428 committed and assigned.

The General Fund is the chief operation fund of the Town of Portsmouth. An¢hef the current
fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the Gemaind was 6912353, while the total fund balance

of the GeneraFundwas$8911,595 Asameasuref the GeneraFund'diquidity, it maybeuseful

to compare both the unassigned fupalance and total fund balance to the total General Fund
budgeted expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represeltsdfzhe FY 20Y Adopted General
Fund Expenditure Budget. Total fund balance represerfi%oldt. thesamebudget.
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Financial Analysis d the Town of Portsmouth's Funds (continued)

The ¥,896614 current fiscal year increase fund balance of the Town's Capital Project Fund (one
of major governmental funds due to fiscal 202bond issuance net of related capital expenditures

The School Unrestricted fund, which ispartion of the general fund had ending fund balance of
$1,692489 which includes a committefdind balance 0%$1.260145 at June 30, 201 Thecommitted
fund balance represen&2% of total School Department exmbtures of$39001,365. The School
Unrestricted fundalance increased by148532during the fiscal year ended June 30, 20lhe excess

of revenues overx@endiures isprimarily due to the timing dbtatereimbursements

The Other Governmental Funds had a total fund balan@&®2,009785 which represents $383469
decrease in fund balance during fiseal year ended June 30, 201The decrease in fund balance is
primarily due to the excess of expenditures over revamukee in the SchoolCapital Projects furlof
$5999100ffset by the excess of revenues over expenditures ifidlva Special Revenuends of $176,057.

Proprietaryfunds.The Townds proprietary fund f i infarmatiana |
found in the governmemide financial statements, but in more detail

Net position of theschool Cafeteria Fundt June 30, 20lamounted t&$197,861, of which$154,091is
unrestricted. Transfer Stati6iind net position amounted t81,846, of which $11,693is unrestricted.
Wind Turbine Generator Fund net position amounted to $(387,418), of which $(387,418) is unrestricte
Summer School net position amounted to $(234), of which $(234) is unrestricted. Septic System Lo
Program Fund neposition amounted to $(27,263), of whiclil$2306) is unrestricted. Glen Farm
Equestrian Fund net position amounted to $4,500, of which $4,500 is unrestiitiedotal growth in

net position for each of theix funds was$43,717 $(18,820), $314,000, $(8,161), $(6,298and $4,500,
respectively. Other factors concerning the finances of sgig$ends have already been addressed in the
di scussion of -typeactiviieswnds busi ness
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Town General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Overall, theTown of Portsrmuth, Rhode Island finished the 232017 fiscal year with a budgetary
surplus of 801,575

General Fund Revenue Factors:
A Lower than budgeted tax revenued867,805i this is under budget by .74%
A Favorable school housing aifl $172,532
A Favorable fees and license revenue of $126,213; and
A Lower than budgeted leases and rentals of $198,665

Expenditure Factors:
A Finance related expenditures were over budget by $233,425 due to OPEB expenditures and
unanticipated sick and vacatiome payouts;
A Lower than budgeted legal expenditures of $190,293; and,
A Higher than budgeted library expenditures of $116,931

SchoolDepartment Unrestricted Fund Budgetary Highlights

Overall, the Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island finished thes-2017 fiscal year with a budgetary
surplus of $48532

Major General Fund Revenue Factors:
A Increase of $51,473in current yeaappropriation for increased operating costs and to replace lost
state aid due to the implementation of the new funding formula
A Actual impact aid revenue exceeded budgeted amount by $141,727

Major Expenditure Factors:
A Budgeted salaries and benefits exceeding actual by $432,775
A Budgeted supplies and materials exceeding actual by $65,918
A Budgeted purchased services exceeditgal by $53,939
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital AssetsThe Town ofPortsmouth'’s capital assets for its government and bugymssactivities

as of June 30, 2@lamount to $9,839710(net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital
assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, park and recreation facilitie
infrastructure and construction in progre&dditional information on the Town of Portsntbls capital
assets can be found in Netépage$7-68) to thefinancial statements.

TOWN OF PORTSMOUTH'S CAPITAL ASSETS AT YEAR END
NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

Land and land easements $ 6,175279 $ 6,175,279 $ 37251 $ 37251 $ 6,212530 $ 6,212,530

Construction in progress 245,864 177,715 - - 245,864 177,715
Land improvements, net 548,591 305,124 - - 548,591 305,124
Building & improvements, net 13,711,202 12,173,021 201,830 210,449 13,913,032 12,383,470
Machinery and equipment, net 3,964,298 2,908,476 168,057 181,383 4,132,355 3,089,859
Infrastructure, net 12,520,266 10,418,238 - - 12,520,266 10,418,238
Vehicles, net 2,267,072 2,000,888 - - 2,267,072 2,000,888

Total $ 39432572 $ 34,158,741 $ 407,138 $ 429,083 $ 39,839,710 $ 34,587,824

Debt Administation - At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town of Portsmouth had total bonded
debt outstanding of25,162000and capital leases outstanding 878110, entirely backed by the full
faith and credit of the Town. dditional information on the Towof Portsmouth's debt obligations can
be found in Note 7pages9-70) to the financiaktatements.

TOWN OF PORTSMOUTH'S OUTSTANDING DEBT AT YEAR END

BONDS, LOANS AND CAPITALIZED LEASES PAYABLE

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

General obligation bonds $ 24,632,532 $ 14,098,425 $ 529468 $ 628574 $25162,000 $ 14,726,999
Capital leases 978,110 564,798 - - 978,110 564,798

Total $ 25,610,642 $ 14,663223 $ 529468 $ 628574 $26,140,110 $ 15,291,797
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Capital Asset andDebt Administration (continued)

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation bonded debt a town can issue to 3 percent
of net assessed property values. The Town of Portsmouth has a policy that places the limit at
2 percent of net assessed propeelues and the ratio of annual debt service payments shall
not exceed 15% of the operating budget's expenditures. Bonds approved by the State enabling
legislation and voter referendurage exempt from the limit. As of June 30, 20the Town

had a deblimit of $94,350,150.

In October of 2015 the Town of Portsmouth was rated as part of a bond offering. Standard
and Poor's rated the Town of Portsmouth at AAA, the highest rating. Moody's Investors
Services rated th€own at Aa2.

Economic Factors

TheTown of Portsmouthoés total proposed Gener al
$61,865,607, which reflects an increase of 1.
$61,865,607 budget, $36,530,953 or 59.04% is budgeted for the PortsmblittSehools. The

Town is budgeted to receive $4,482,185 or 7.25% from the State of Rhode Island for aid for
Education.

The Townds tax rate for fiscal year 2018 is $
year 2016.

The Townods dlestart to see a decrease inwannual debt service as debt is being
extinguished.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Towortdmouth s
finances for all those with an interestiné¢ gover nment 6s finances. Qu
the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to the @¢e of the Finance Director, 22@ast Main RoadPortsmouthRI 02871
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2017

Primary Governme nt

Govermmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 22,037,080 $ 68296 $ 22,105,376
Restricted cash - 135,043 135,043
Receivables, net

Personal property taxes 1,505,971 - 1,505,971

User charges 428,836 182,981 611,817

Intergovernmental 651,686 38,547 690,233

Departmental and other 481,900 4512 486,412
Due from other funds 23,699,830 1,822,038 25,521,868
Prepaid expenses 667,511 - 667,511
Inventory 62,208 25,509 87,717
Net pension asset 3,817,161 - 3,817,161
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable assets 6,421,143 37,251 6,458,394

Depreciable assets, net 33,011,429 369,887 33,381,316

Total capital assets 39,432,572 407,138 39,839,710
Total assets 92,784,755 2,684,064 95,468,819
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related outflows 11,487,156 - 11,487,156
OPERB related outflows 2,467,338 - 2,467,338
Loss on refunding 99,504 - 99,504
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 106,838,753 $ 2,684,064 $ 109,522,817

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2017

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Other liabilties

Accrued interest

Due to other funds

Current portion of capital leases

Current portion of bonds and notes payable
Current portion of bond premium

Current portion of compensated absences

Primary Government

Portion due or payable in more than one year:

Capital leases

Bonds and notes payable

Bond premium

Compensated absences

Net other post-employment benefit liability
Net pension liability

Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension related inflows
OPERB related outflows

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total liabilties, deferred inflows or resources
and net position

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ 2,466,045 $ 104,337  $ 2,570,382
97,053 - 97,053
270,067 5,803 275,870
23,822,396 1,942,164 25,764,560
294,612 - 294,612
1,658,066 64,934 1,723,000
72,858 - 72,858
131,611 - 131,611
683,498 - 683,498
22,974,466 464,534 23,439,000
769,974 - 769,974
1,623,200 - 1,623,200
24,697,548 - 24,697,548
71,658,694 - 71,658,694
151,220,088 2,581,772 153,801,860
5,879,167 - 5,879,167
443,953 - 443,953
6,323,120 - 6,323,120
12,808,535 246,923 13,055,458
13,224,782 135,043 13,359,825
(76,737,772) (279,674) (77,017,446
$ 106,838,753 $ 2,684,064 $ 109,522,817

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Govermmental Activities

General government
Public safety

Public services
Education
Community services
Interest on debt

Total governmental activities

Business-Type Activities
School cafeteria fund
Transfer station

Wind turbine generator fund
Summer school

Septic system loan program
Glen manor equestrian

Total business-type activities

Total Town of Portsmouth

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Positic

Primary Govemment

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
$ 5631833 $ 1276782 $ 29453 % - $ (432559) $ - 3% (4,325,598
13,281,332 1,247,938 115,843 - (11,917,551) - (11,917,551
3,384,612 904,663 136,310 - (2,343,639) - (2,343,639
40,978,207 1,324,821 5,536,956 - (34,116,430) - (34,116,430
1,297,889 269,131 146,331 - (882,427) - (882,427,
640,732 - - - (640,732) - (640,732)
65,214,605 5,023,335 5,964,893 - (54,226,377) - (54,226,377
752,768 526,846 267,602 - - 41,680 41,680
682,031 667,281 - - - (14,750) (14,750)
- - 64,000 - - 64,000 64,000
10,470 - - - - (10,470) (10,470)
894 7,789 - - - 6,895 6,895
- 4,500 - - - 4,500 4,500
1,446,163 1,206,416 331,602 - - 91,855 91,855
$ 66,660,768 $ 6,229,751 $ 6,296,495 $ - $ (54226377) $ 91,855 $ (54,134,522

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
General revenues
Real estate and personal property, net of reserve for abatements $ 51,008,411 $ 51,008,411
Hotels and meals tax 269,851 269,851
Telephone tax 206,895 - 206,895
Earnings on invesments 39,911 (17,258) 22,653
State aid to town 2,331 - 2,331
State aid to education 2,954,170 2,954,170
Library housing 116,931 116,931
Group home aid 600,518 600,518
Medicaid 236,647 236,647
Miscellaneous 61,917 61,917
Total general revenues 55,497,582 (17,258) 55,480,324
Transfers in (out) (504,341) 254,341 (250,000)
Total general revenues, special items, and transfers 54,993,241 237,083 55,230,324
Changes in net position 766,864 328,938 1,095,802
Net position - July 1, 2016, restated (51,471,319) (226,646) (51,697,965
Net position - June 30, 2017 $ (50,704,455) $ 102,292 $ (50,602,163

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island

Governmetal Funds

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2017

Assets

Cash and investments

Receivables:
Property taxes, net
Intergovernmental
Ambulance receivable
Other

Due from other funds

Inventory

Prepaid expenses

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources
None

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 28,679,251

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Due to federal and state government

Unearned revenue
Other liabilties
Due to other funds

Total liabilties

Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable property tax revenue
Unavailable ambulance revenue

Total deferred inflows of resources

Fund balance
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balance

Total liabilties, deferred inflows of resources,

and fund balance

Major Fund Non-Major Total
General Town Capital Govemmental Govemmental

Fund Project Fund Funds Funds
$ 21,444,503 $ 6,275 $ 586,302 $ 22,037,080
1,505,971 - - 1,505,971
206,895 - 444,791 651,686
428,836 - - 428,836
455,562 - 26,338 481,900
3,907,765 11,229,568 8,562,497 23,699,830
62,208 - - 62,208
667,511 - - 667,511
28,679,251 11,235,843 9,619,928 49,535,022
$ 11,235,843 $ 9,619,928 $ 49,535,022
$ 1,824,697 $ 519,088 $ 122,260 $ 2,466,045
28,025 - 1,864 29,889
67,164 - - 67,164
16,336,377 - 7,486,019 23,822,396
18,256,263 519,088 7,610,143 26,385,494
1,082,557 - - 1,082,557
428,836 - - 428,836
1,511,393 - - 1,511,393
729,719 - 161,552 891,271
- 10,716,755 2,508,027 13,224,782
1,260,145 - 586,905 1,847,050
9,378 - - 9,378
6,912,353 - (1,246,699) 5,665,654
8,911,595 10,716,755 2,009,785 21,638,135
$ 28,679,251 $ 11,235,843 $ 9,619,928 $ 49,535,022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Major Fund Non-Major Total
General Town Capital Governmental Governmental
Fund Project Fund Funds Funds
Revenues
General property taxes and interest 50,764,048 $ - - $ 50,764,048
State aid and grants 7,125,684 - 1,243,918 8,369,602
Licenses, permits, and fees 2,468,756 - - 2,468,756
Charges for services 1,481,573 - 947,145 2,428,718
Investment income 38,307 - 1,604 39,911
Other revenue 61,917 28,355 224,419 314,691
State contribution to pension plan 1,630,636 - - 1,630,636
Total revenue 63,570,921 28,355 2,417,086 66,016,362
Expenditures
General government 4,626,424 - 230,351 4,856,775
Public safety 11,652,948 - 162,885 11,815,833
Public works 3,204,738 - 120,473 3,325,211
Public and social services 778,636 - 2,080 780,716
Parks and recreation 228,623 - 170,426 399,049
Education 39,001,365 - 1,104,509 40,105,874
Capital outlay - 5,365,817 1,539,763 6,905,580
Debt service
Principal 1,905,979 - - 1,905,979
Interest 517,121 - - 517,121
Total expenditures 61,915,834 5,365,817 3,330,487 70,612,138
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 1,655,087 (5,337,462) (913,401) (4,595,776
Other financing sources (uses)
Proceeds from capital leases - 430,913 - 430,913
Issuance of debt 600,000 12,111,211 - 12,711,211
Debt issuance costs - (78,755) - (78,755)
Transfers in 250,000 770,707 879,932 1,900,639
Transfers out (2,054,980) - (350,000) (2,404,980
Other financing sources (uses) (1,204,980) 13,234,076 529,932 12,559,028
Excess of revenue and other sources over
expenditures and other uses 450,107 7,896,614 (383,469) 7,963,252
Fund balance, July 1, 2016 8,461,488 2,820,141 2,393,254 13,674,883
Fund balance, June 30, 2017 $ 8,911,595 $ 10,716,755 $ 2,009,785 $ 21,638,135

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet Total
Fund Balances to the Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2017

Total governmental fund balances $ 21,638,135

Assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Capital assets, net 39,432,572
TSB net pension asset 3,817,161

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred inflows of resources in the funds. 1,511,393

Other long-term assets related to net pension and OPEB activity and therefore, are
deferred inflows of resources in the funds. (6,323,120

Other long-term liabilities related to net pension and OPEB activity and therefore,
are deferred outflows of resources in the funds. 13,954,494

Long term liabilities relating to bond premiums amortized over
the life of the bond (842,832)

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding
long-term debt whereas in governmental funds interest is not
reported until due. (270,067)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore are not reported in the governmental funds

Bonds and notes payable (24,533,028
Capital leases (978,110)
Compensated absences (1,754,811
Other postemployment benefits (24,697,548
Town net pension liability (39,832,196
ERS net pension liability (31,826,498
Net position of governmental activities $ (50,704,455

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 7,963,252

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. 5,273,831

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are fully deferred in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various
types of accounts receivable (i.e., real estate and personal property, motor
vehicle excise, etc.) differ between the two statements. This amount represents
the net change in deferred inflows of resources. 275,578

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when
debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
Statement of Activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the
treatment of long-term debt and related items. (10,977,272

Bond premiums for long term debt are amortized over the course of the payable
but are not reported as an expenditure on governmental fund statements (231,644)

In the Statement of Activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in governmental funds interest, is not reported until due. (123,611)

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities, such as compensated absences,
do not require the current financial resources, and therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in the governmental funds. 256,646

The other postemployment benefit expense reported in the Statement of Activities

requires the use of current financial resources and is not reported as an

expenditure in the governmental funds (295,013)
The net pension liability expense reported in the Statement of Activities

requires the use of current financial resources and is not reported as an
expenditure in the governmental funds (1,374,903

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 766,864

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Islard

Statement of Net Position

Enterprise Funds

June 30, 207
School Transfer Summer Septic System  Glen Farm
Cafeteria Fund Station Generator Fund School Loan Program Equestrian Total
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 68,296 $ $ - 3 $ 68,296
Restricted cash - 135,043 135,043
Receivables, net:
User fees, less allowance for doubtful accounts - 176,851 6,130 182,981
Intergovernmental 38,547 - - 38,547
Other - 4512 - - 4512
Due from other funds 1,616,848 161,982 7,309 35,899 1,822,038
Inventory 25,509 - - - 25,509
Total current assets 1,749,200 166,494 7,309 347,793 6,130 2,276,926
Non-current assets
Nondepreciable - 37,251 37,251
Depreciable, net 43,770 326,117 369,887
Total non-current assets 43,770 363,368 407,138
Total assets 1,792,970 529,862 7,309 347,793 6,130 2,684,064
Deferred outflows of resources
None
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 1792970 $ 529,862 7309 % 347793  $ 6,130 $ 2,684,064

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Islard

Enterprise Funds

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 207
School Transfer Wind Turbine Summer Septic System  Glen Farm
Cafeteria Fund Station Generator Fund School Loan Program Equestrian Total
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 47906 $ 54,801 $ $ - % 1630 $ 104,337
Accrued interest payable - 747 - - 5,056 5,803
Due to other funds 1,547,203 - 387,418 7,543 - 1,942,164
Current portion of bonds payable - 19,934 - - 45,000 64,934
Total current liahilities 1,595,109 75,482 387,418 7,543 50,056 1,630 2,117,238
Non-current liabilities:
Bonds payable 139,534 325,000 464,534
Total non-current liabilities 139,534 325,000 464,534
Total liahilities 1,595,109 215,016 387,418 7,543 375,056 1,630 2,581,772
Deferred inflows of resources
None
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 43,770 203,153 - 246,923
Restricted - - - - 135,043 135,043
Unrestricted 154,091 111,693 (387,418) (234) (162,306) 4,500 (279,674)
Total net position $ 197,861 $ 314,846 (387,418) $ (234) % (27263) $§ 4500 $ 102,292

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Enterprise Funds
Statement Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Year Endedune 30, 207

Operating revenues
Charges for services
Intergovernmental
Other revenues

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Cafeteria operations
Transfer station expenses
Education

Septic system loan program
Depreciation and amorization

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest income (expense)

Income (loss) before transfers

Transfers
Transfers in

Total Transfers

Change in net position

Net position, July 1, 2016

Net position, June 30, 2017

School Transfer Wind Turbine Summer Septic System Glen Farm
Cafeteria Fund Station Generator Fund School Loan Program Equestrian Total

$ 526846 $ 667,281 $ - 8 - 8 7,789  $ 4500 $ 1,206,416
267,602 - - - - - 267,602

- - 64,000 - - - 64,000

794,448 667,281 64,000 - 7,789 4,500 1,538,018
748,014 - - - - - 748,014

- 664,840 - - - - 664,840

- - - 10,470 - - 10,470

- - - - 894 - 894

4,754 17,191 - - - - 21,945
752,768 682,031 - 10,470 894 - 1,446,163
41,680 (14,750) 64,000 (10,470) 6,895 4,500 91,855
5 (4,070) - - (13,193) - (17,258)

41,685 (18,820) 64,000 (10,470) (6,298) 4,500 74,597

2,032 - 250,000 2,309 - - 254,341

2,032 - 250,000 2,309 - - 254,341
43,717 (18,820) 314,000 (8,161) (6,298) 4,500 328,938
154,144 333,666 (701,418) 7,927 (20,965) - 226,646)

$ 197861 $ 314846 $ (387,418) $ (234) % (27,263) $ 4500 $ 102,292

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Enterprise Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Endedune 30, 207

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers

Cash received from government

Cash received from other funds
Payments to suppliers and employees

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Principal paid on capital debt

Interest paid on capital debt

Interest income

Proceeds from other funds

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Balances-beginning of the year
Balances-end of the year

Displayed as:

Cash and cash equivalents

School Transfer Wind Turbine Summer Septic System GlenFarm
Cafeteria Fund Station Generator Fund School Loan Program Equestrian Total

$ 526846 $ 667,769 $ 3951 $ (1,630) $ 1,196,936
242,795 - - - - 242,795
3,817 16,998 1,385,131 9,102 60,226 1,475,274
(748,659) (626,469) (11,417) (894) 1,630 (1,385,803
24,799 58,298 1,385,131 (2,309) 63,283 1,529,202
(54,106) (1,615,000) (45,000) (1,714,106
- (4,192) (20,131) (15,227) (39,550)

5 - - - - 5

2,032 250,000 2,309 254,341
2,037 (58,298) (1,385,131) 2,309 (60,227) (1,499,310

26,836 3,056 29,892
41,460 131,987 173,447

$ 68,296 $ - 8 135043 § $ 203,339
$ 68,296 $ - 8 135043 § $ 203,339

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Enterprise Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Endedune 30, 207

Reconciliation of operating income (l0ss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in user charges receivables, net
(Increase) decrease in intergovernmental receivable
(Increase) decrease in other receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventory
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

School Transfer Wind Turbine Summer Septic System Glen Farm
Cafeteria Fund Station Generator Fund School Loan Program Equestrian Total
$ 41680 $ (14750) $ 64,000 $ (10470) $ 6895 $ 4500 $ 91855
4,754 17,191 - - - - 21,945
- 488 - - (3,838) (6,130) (9,480)
(24,807) - - - (24,807)
3817 16,998 1,321,131 9,102 60,226 1,411,274
399 - - - - 399
(1,044) 38,371 - (941) - 1,630 38,016
$ 24799 $ 58298 §$ 1,385131 $ (2,309) $ 63,283 $ $ 1,529,202

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhodelsland

Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 207
Total
Town OPEB Fiduciary
Pension Trust Trust Agency Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 861,962 $ - $ 694,795 $ 1,556,757
Investments, at fair value 52,054,318 1,115,700 - 53,170,018
Accounts receivable - employee 22,628 - - 22,628
Due from other funds - - 247,692 247,692
Prepaid expenses 4,242 - - 4,242
Total assets 52,943,150 1,115,700 942,487 55,001,337
Deferred outflows of resources
None - - - -
Total assets and deferred outflows of resourc§s 52,943,150 $ 1,115,700 $ 942487 $ 55,001,337
Liabilities
Due to other funds $ 5000 $ -3 - % 5,000
Deposits held - - 942,487 942,487
Total liabilties 5,000 - 942,487 947,487
Deferred inflows of resources
None - - - -
Net Position
Restricted 52,938,150 1,115,700 - 54,053,850
Total net position 52,938,150 1,115,700 - 54,053,850
Total liabilties and net position $ 52,943,150 $ 1,115,700 $ 942,487 $ 55,001,337

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island

Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

For the Year Endedune 30, 207

Additions
Employer contributions

Plan member contributions
Investment income (net of related fees)

Total additions
Deductions

Benefits paid
Administrative expenses

Total deductions

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in

Changes in fund equity held in trust

for individuals, organizations, and
other governments

Net posttion, July 1, 2016

Net posttion, June 30, 2017

The accompanying

Total

Town OPEB Fiducary

Pension Trust Trust Funds
$ 3,955,207 $ 1,121,418 % 5,076,625
335,899 84,488 420,387
5,761,957 90,453 5,852,410
10,053,063 1,296,359 11,349,422
3,913,547 871,418 4,784,965
147,043 458 147,501
4,060,590 871,876 4,932,466
5,992,473 424,483 6,416,956
46,945,677 691,217 47,636,894
$ 52,938,150 $ 1,115,700 $ 54,053,850

notes are an integral part of this statement



Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Endedune 30, 207

Summary of significant accounting policies:

The basic financial statements of the TowrPoftsmouth Rhode Island (the Town) have

been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of Anerica applicable to governmental entities (U.S. GAAP). In certain instances,
summaries of the Townbdés significant account |
notes to the basic financial statements in conjunction with other disclosures totléych

relate. Certain immaterial differences in the accompanying financial statements may exist

due to rounding.

Financial reporting entity:

Portsmouth was established in 1638 and incorporated as a Town in 1640. The Town of
Portsmouth (the Town) is gewned largely under the 1958 Home Rule Charter, which
provides for a Council- Administrator form of government. The Town provides various
services including education, solid wadisposal public safety(police andfire), public

works, (engineeringhighway, recycling,public buildings parksandrecreation)social
servicesaandgeneragovernmenservices.

As a general rule, the effect of intemd activity has been eliminated from the
Governmentwide financial statements.

Reporting Entity

In evaluating how to define the government for financial reporting purposes,
management has considered all potential component uhits. decision to include a
potential component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set
forth in Gowernmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement NoTH&,
Financial Reporting entity: Omnibus an amendment of B3tatements No. 14 and No.
34.Under GASB Statement No. 61, a legally separate entity is required to be included as
a component unif it is fiscally dependent upon the primary government and there is a
financial benefit or burden relationship present. The primary government is financially
accountable if it appoints the voting majority of the organization's governing board and
(1) it is able to impose its will on that organization or (2) there is a potefdiathe
organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens
on, the primary government. A potential component unit has a financial bermfiten
relationship with the primary government if, for example, any one of the following
conditions exists:
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Endedune 30, 207

1. Summary of significant accounting policieontinued)

Reporting Entitycontinued)

a) The primary government is legally obligated or bserwise assumed the
obligation to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the
organization.

b) The primary government is obligated in some manner for the debt of the
organization.

The following entity was considered for classificatioma®mponent unit for fiscal year
2017:
*  Portsmouth Water and Fil@istrict

The Portsmouth Water and Fire District is a separate legal entity that appoints its own
board members, sets its own billing rates and is not fiscally dependent upon the Town of
Patsmouth. Asa result, the Portsmouth Water and Fire District has not been included
as a componeninit.

The Town of Portsmouth does not have any component units.

Basis of presentation:
Governmentvide financial statements:

The statement of ngiosition and statement of activities display information about the
Town as a whole and distinguish between governmental and buipesctivities. They
include all funds of the Town except for fiduciary funds. Governmental activities generally
are firanced through taxes, intergovernmental revenues and othexobange revenues.
Businesgype activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties
for goods or services.

The statement of activities presents a comparison betxpemses and program revenue for

each function of the Towndés governmental ac
and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and b) grants
and contributions that are rested to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes,

are presented as general revenues.
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Endedune 30, 207

1.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued):
Basis of presentation (continued):
Fund financial statements:

Fund financial statements of the Town arganized into funds, each of which is considered

to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of
selfbalancing accounts which constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and
expenditures. Fus are organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary
and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds, each displayed in a separate column.
A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the Town or meets both of
the following criteria:

(a) Total assets plus deferred outflows of resources, liabilities plus deferred inflows of
resources, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or
enterprise fund are at least ten percent (10%) of thesmonding total for all
funds of that category or typand

(b) Total assets pludeferred outflows of resources, liabilities ptieferred inflows of
resources, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental
fund or enterprise fundre at least five percent (5%) of the corresponding total
for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reportedraganon
funds.

Fund types used by the Town and a descritfahe funds comprising each are as follows:
Governmental funds:

Governmental funds are used to account for operations that supply basic
government services.
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Endedune 30, 207

1.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued):
Basis of presentatioftontinued):
Fund financial statements (continued):
Governmental funds (continued):

The Town uses the following governmental funds:

General Fund:

The General Fund is the primary operating fund ofTivn and is always classified
as a majofund. It is used to account for and report all activities except those legally
or administratively required to be accounted for in other funds.

Special revenue funds:

Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specific purposes
other than debt service or capital proje
the School Department, which provides pr

Capital projects funds:

Capital projects funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are
restricted, committed, or assigned for the acquisition or construction of specific capital
projects or items. T samdoofund.6 s Capi tal P
Permanent funds:

Permanent funds account for and report assets held by the Town where the principal

portion of this fund type must remain intact, but the earnings may be used to achieve
the objectives of t h é&ndsarealdnomajoffanes. Town 6 s

Proprietary funds:

Proprietary funds are used to account for busHikesactivities provided to the

general public (enterprise funds) or within the gowsent (internal service funds).

These activities are financeatimarily by user charges and the measurement of
financial activity focuses on net income measurement similar to the private sector.

Of the Townbés four enterprise funds, t he
Fund are major funds. The Town has neinal service funds
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Endedune 30, 207

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued):
Basis of presentation (continued):
Fund financial statements (continued):

Fiduciary funds:

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held by the Townustee or agency capacity
and, therefore, cannot be used to suppor
fiduciary funds are used by the Town:

Pension trusts:

Pension trust funds account for contributions made by the Town and its participating
employees to provide retirement benefits to participating employees.

Other postemployment benefits (OPEB) trust:

The OPEB Trust fund accounts for contributions made by the Town and its participating
employees to provide postemployment benefits (hemlfurance) to participating
employees.

Private purpose trust:

The Townébés private purpose trust accounts
outside committee to provide awards and
instructions. Al resources of the fund, including any earnings on investments, may be
used. There is no requirement that any portion of these resources be preserved as capital.

Agency:

Agency funds are established when the Town holds assets in custody for otuers in
agency capacitylhe reporting entity includésnagencyfunds(Soil Fund,GMH Deposit
Fund, Probate Court Fund, Glen PBxkmageDepositFund, Prescott Point Fuaahd five
StudentActivities fundg.
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Endedune 30, 207

Summary of significant accountimmlicies (continued):
Basis of presentation (continued):

Major and Non-Major Funds

The funds are further classified major onorrmajor as follows:

Brief Description:
Major:
General Fund See Description above

Town Capital Project Fund Accounts for the Town's acquisition ol
construction of specific capital projects
This fund did not meetthe criteria for
reporting asa major fund. However
managemenglected tgpresent théund as
amajor fund.

Proprietary Funds:

School Cafeteria Fund Accourts for the operationof the school
breakfastandlunch progranof the School
Department.

Transfer Station Fund Accountsfor the Town'dransferstation
operations.This fund did notmeet the
criteria for reportingas a major fund
However, managementelected to
presenthe fund as majorfund.

Wind Turbine Generator Fund Accounts for the operation of the
Townd wind turbinegenerator.

Summer School Fund Accounts for the operation of the
summer schooprogramof the School
DepartmentThis fund didnot meethe
criteria for reportingas amajor fund.
However, managementelected to
present the funds amajor fund.

Septic System Loan Program Accounts for activity related tdhe
Town's septic systenmoan program.
This fund did notmeet the ateria for
reporting as a majorfund. However,
management elected presenthe fund
asa majorfund.
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Endedune 30, 207

1.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued):

Basis of presentation (continued):

Major and Non-Major Funds (continued)

Major (continued):
Glen Farm Equestrian

Non-major:

Special Revenue Funds:

CapitalProject Funds:

Permanent Funds:

Measuremerfocus and basis of accounting

Brief Description:

Accounts for activity related tdhe

Town's Glen Farm Equestrian fund
This fund did notmeet the criteria for
reporting as a majorfund. However,

management electéd presenthe fund

asamajor fund.

The Town currently maintainsforty
seven (47) special evenuefundsand the
School maintains thirty one (31) spec
revenue fundg/hich havebeen classifiec
asnorrmajor governmentdlinds.

The Town of Portsmouth currently
maintaingten (10) capitalproject unds
and the Schoataintains three (three)
capital project fundsvhich have been
classifiedas nommajor governmental
funds.

The Town of Portsmouth currently
maintains two (2) permanentFunds
which have beenclassified as non
major governmental funds.

The governmentvide financial statements are reported using the econm@sdauirces
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timingatkretash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. Grants
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements

imposed by the provider have been met
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Endedune 30, 207

1. Summary of significandccounting policies (continued):
Basis of presentation (continued):
Measurement focus and basis of accounting (continued):

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modifiecraal basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized

when they are susceptible to accrual. Susceptibility occurs when revenues are both
measur able and available for I iquidating
means the amount of thetraosai on can be determined and i
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current period (sixty days). Expenditures, including capital outlays, are recognized when

a liability has ben incurred, except for those involving debt service and otheitéonyg

obligations that are recognized when paid.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, special assessments, federal
impact aid, state aid, meals and hotel taxes cetlebythe State of Rhode Island (the

State) on behalf of the Town, interest and charges for services. Fines, licenses and permit

revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until
received in cash; therefore, they ereognized when received.

Recognition of grant revenues is based on the susceptibility of accrual as determined by
the legal and contractual requirements established by each grantor. For grants not
restrictive as to specific purposes and revocable anmlfaflure to comply with general
prescribed requirements, revenues are recognized when actually received. Where
expenditure is the prime factor in determining eligibility, grant revenue is recognized as
allowable expenditures are made provided theyalleated during the year or within 60

days subsequent to yeamd. Prior to expenditure, proceeds are recorded as unearned
revenues.

Amounts reported as program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privilegpsovided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital
grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues
rather than program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds digtiguish operating revenues and expenses fromopenating

items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods i n connec
ongoing operationsThe Town curently maintains five enterprise funds (School Cafeteria

Fund, Transfer Station Fund, Wind Turbine Generator Fund, Summer School Fund, and
Septic System Loan Program). The Town currently does not have Internal $Femas

Operating expenses for the pretay funds include the cost of prograrand services,
administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reportasl noroperating revenues and expenses.
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1. Summary osignificant accounting policies (continued):
Basis of presentation (continued):
Measurement focus and basis of accounting (continued):

When both restricted and wunrestricted resour
restricted reources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, time and demand deposits -d@dnshort
investments maturing within three months from the date of acquisiti

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, time and demand deposits and all highly liqui
investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased. Under Rhode Island laws,
depository institutions holding deposits of the Stiseagencies or governmental subdivision of the
State, must insure or pledge eligible collateral equal to 100% of the deposits maturing ithgneater
sixty days. Any institutions not meeting certain federally prescribed minimum capital standatds
insure deposits or pledged collateral equal to 100% of the deposits, regardless of maturities. The
Town complied with these requirements. The Town does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit
risk or otherisk.

Investments:

Investments areepored at fair value, based on quotations from applicable national securities
exchanges. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfel
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at theunszaent date. Unrealized

gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognized as investment income. The State does
not have pertinent laws regarding investments that apply to cities and towns. The Town does not
have an investment policy for custddaiedit risk or otherisks other than those relating its

pension trust fund and OPEB trust fund (Managed Funds). The Town's Pension/OPEB Trust Fund
Investment Advisory Committee responsible for the supervision of the investment of the Town's
Managed Funds investments with the objective of preserving capital and investing with care to
minimize the risk of largdosses.
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Endedune 30, 207

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (congdi
Basis of presentation (continued):
Measurement focus and basis of accounting (continued):

Real Estate and Personal Property taxes:

For the Governmerwide financial statements, property taxes are recognized as revenue in the
fiscal year they are levied. For the fund financial statements, property taxes are recognized as
revenue in the fiscal year they are levied and become availaldbe. considered available, property
taxes must be due and collected during the year or within 60 days subsegearthol Property

taxes not considered available are reported as deferred inflawssare levied in Julyon (a)one
hundred percent dhe full and fair value of real and tangible personal property owned within the
Town the previous December 31; and, (b) the value, as determined by the Rhode Island Vehicle
Valuation Commission, of vehicles registered within the Town the previous caleataprorated

for the actual number of days segistered.

Taxes levied in July are payable quarterly on September 1, December 1, March 1 dnBallure

to make payments on the prior year's assessment bylarich will result in a lien on the taxpayer's
property. Real estate and personal propertyare shown net of an allowance for uncollectible
accounts. The allowance is oaliated based on ttage oftheindividual receivables and amounted

to $456,828 at June 30, 201 in the governmental statement and statement of net position,
respectively.

Rhode Island general laws restrict the Town's ability to increase its total tax levy by more than
4.00% wer that of the preceding fiscal year.

Due from Federal and State Government:

Various federal and state grarits operatingand capital purposes arepplied for andeceived
annually. For norexpendituredriven grants, receivableare recordedas soon asall eligibility
requirementsmposed by therovider have been met. For expenditure driven grants, receivables
are recorded when the qualifying expendituresiacarred andall other grantrequirements are
met

These receivables are considered 100% ciitke andtherefore, do not report an allowance for
uncollectible amounts.

Short term Interfund Receivables and Payables:

During the course obperations, numerous transactiatsur betweemdividual fundsfor goods
provided orservicesrendered.Thesereceivablesand payableare classifiedas"due fromother
funds” or "due tootherfunds”on the governmental funds balance sh€bese internal balances
are eliminated ithe Governmentvide statement of net position.
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For the Year Endedune 30, 207

1. Summary ofignificant accounting policies (continued):
Basis of presentation (continued):

Measurement focus and basis of accounting (continued):

Inventory.

Inventoryreported in the Town's general furelmaintainedon aperpetualsystemandis
statedatcost (first in first out methodf inventory valuation)lnventoryis generallyrecorded
asexpenditures/expenses when consumed.

Capital assets and depreciation

Capitalassetsare reported ithe statemenbf netposition inthe Governmentvide financid
statements. Capital assets acquitsdgovernmentalfunds are reported as capital outlay
expenditures.

Capital assetaredefinedby the Town as assets with anitial, individual cost of$5,0000r
more andan estimated useful life in excess of one yAlicapital assets are valuedrastorical
cost or estimatelistoricalcost.Donated capitahssetsdonated works of art and similar items,
and capital assets received in a service concession arrangeeEtordedtacquisition value
rather tharfair. Net interestcosts related to constructigmojects arecapitalized duringhe
construction period. Sudaosts were not incurreglringfiscal2017.

The cost ohormal maintenance amdpairs thatlo not addo thevalue of assets or materially
extendassets' lives amot included ircapitalassets.

Depreciationof all exhaustible capitahssets is recorded as aflocated expensen the
Governmentwide statement of activities, wittaccumulated depreciation reflectéd the
statement ohetposition. Depreciations provided ovetheassets' estimated useful lives using
the straightine method

The estimated useful lives by type of capital asset are as follows:

Years
Land improvements 20
Buildings and improvements 10-50
Machinery & equipment 4-20
Construction equipment 10
Infrastructure 10-50
Motor vehicles 6-20
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued):
Basis of presentation (continued):

Measurement focus and basis of accounting (continued):

Bond Premiums and Issuancg€osts:

In the governmental funds, bond premiums and issuance costs are treated as period costs
in the year the bonds are issued. Bond issuance costs are included in debt service
expenditures and bond premiums are reflected as other financing sources in th
governmental funds financial statements. Bond premiums are reported as other financing
sources while discounts are reported as other financing uses.

In the Governmentvide statement of net position, bond premiums are deferred and
amortized over the terf the bonds using the straigiie method. Bond premiums are
presented as an addition to the face amount of the bonds payable.

Deferred inflows and outflows of resources:

Deferred inflows of resources represent the acquisition of net assetsaghyatcable to a future
reportng period. Deferred outflows of resources represent the consumption of net assets that
is applicable to a futuneportingperiod.

In addition to assets, the statement of net position and/or balance sheet can report deferred
outflows of resources. Deferred outflow of resources represents a consumption of net position
that apply to a future period and which will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until that later da&¢ June 30, 204 the Townof Portsmouth, Rhode

Island reports deferred outflows related to pens@REB,and deferred charges on refunding

in the Governmentide statenent of net position. The deferred outflow of resources related to
pension totaling $1,487,156results from diffeences between expected and actual experience,
changes in assumptions or other inputs. These amounts are deferred and included in pension
expense in a systematic and rational manner over a period equal to the average of the expected
remaining service livesf all employees that are provided with benefits through the pension
plan (ative employees and inactive employeeR)e deferred outflow of resources related to
OPEB totaling $2,467,338sults from differences between expected and actual experience,
changes in assumptions or other inputs. These amounts are deferred and incl@REBN
expense in a systematic and rational manner over a period equal to the average of the expected
remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with benefiisghtheOPEBplan

(adive employees and inactive employeeBhe deferred charge on refunding total$fp,504

for governmental activities is the unamortized balance of the difference between the carrying
value of the refunded debt and the new debt. This amount is deferred and amortized over the
shorter of the life of the refunded or refundidgbt.
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For the Year Endedune 30, 207

1. Summary of gnificant accounting policies (continued):
Basis of presentation (continued):
Measurement focus and basis of accounting (continued):
Deferred irflows and outflows of resources (continued):

In addition toliabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section fordeferredinflows of resources. Thiseparate sectiomepresentshe acquisition ohet
positionthat applies to a futurgeriod and,therefore will not berecognized as an inflowf
resourcegrevenue) untib laterdate. At June 3®017, the Townhadtwo itemsthatqualified
asadeferredinflow of resources in the governmental fuiddancesheet. The unavailable tax
revenue represenggopertytaxesrecavableswhich are assessed on December 315261
prior andare notcollected within 6@laysof June 30, 201 MNet unavailabl@ropertytax revenue
includedin the fund financialstatementsvas $1,082557 at June30, 20T. The unavailable
ambulanceevenuaepresentambulance rescue fee receivalilestarenot collected asf June
30, 2017. Net unavailableambulancerescuefee revenue included in thiind financial
statements was428836 at June30, 2017 Theseamountsare deferred and will be regnized
as an inflow of resources in the year in whilse amount®ecomeavailable

At June 30, 2017he Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island reports defemédws related to
pensionand OPEBiIn the Governmentide staement of net position. The deferredlow of
resources related to pension totalirtg8% 9,167 results from differences between expected and
actual experience, changes in assumptions or other inputs. Thesataraoe deferred and
included as a reduction pension expense in a systematic and rational manner over a period
equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided
with benefits through the pension plant{ae employees and inactive employees). The deferre
inflow of resources related to OPEB totaling48953 results from differences between
expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions or other inputs. Theds areoun
deferred and included as a reductio®®REBexpense in a systematic and oagl manner over

a period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are
provided with benefits through tt@PEBplan (ative employees and inactive employees).
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1. Summary of significant accounting policieof(tinued):
Basis of presentation (continued):

Measurement focus and basis of accounting (continued):

Compensated absences:

Underthe termsof various contracts and agreements, Te@mmployeesare granted vacation
and sickleave in varyingamountsased orengthof service.Vacationbenefitsareaccruedas
a liability basedn the accumulatdoenefits earnedtJune30. Sick leave benefire based on
the sickleaveaccumulated at Jur89 by those employees who are currently eligiblestmeive
terminationpaymentsand thoseemployeedor whomit is probable thewvill become eligible
to receivaermination benefitg1 the futureTheliability is calculated athe rate opay in effect
at June 30, 2017.

The entire compensated abseriability is reported inthe statement of ngbosition. For the
governmentafund financialstatements, accumulated vaca@msickleavehas beemecorded
asa current liability to the extent that the amounts expectedo bepaid usingexpendable
availablefinancial resourcesThe balance othe liability not paid with expendable available
financialresources is naecordedn the governmentafund financial statements.

Accrued liabilities and longterm debt:

All accrued liabilities andlong-term debt arereportedin the Governmenwide financial
statements.

Forthegovernmental fund financial statements, the accliabdities are generally reported
asafundliability if duefor payment as of the balance sheet date, regardless of wtiether

will be liquidated with currenfinancial resources. However, claims and judgments and
compensated absences paid from governmémadks areeported as &ability in the fund
financial statements onfpr the portionexpected tde financedrom expendablavailable
financial resources. Long- term debt paid from governmental funds is not recognized as a
liability in the Fundinancial statements until due. For other laegn obligations, only that
portion expected to be financed from expendalvigilablefinancial sourcess reportedas

afund liability of the governmental fund. Thiaceamountof debt issued is reported as an
other financing source ithe governmentafundsfinancial statements.
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1. Summary of significant accounting polici@ntinued):
Basis of presentation (continued):
Measurement focus and basis of accounting (continued):

Interfund activities

Transactions between funds haweeneliminated in the Governmemtide financial
statements butlly presentedvithin thegovernmentafund financialstatements with
no elimination madebetweeror within funds.Transferdetweerfiduciary fundsand
governmentabr businesgype activities do not gedliminated.

Interfundactivity within and among the funds of thewn have been classifieand
repated adollows:

Reciprocal interfund activities:

Interfund loans areeported amterfundreceivables in thieendingfund and interfund
payablesn borrower funds.

Interfundservices are reported as revenndgbe providefund and as expenditures
expenses in thpurchasingfund.

Interfund transfers are reported in governmental funds as other finaseiagn the

funds making transfers and asther financing sourcesin the funds receiving

transfersln proprietary fundstransfersare reported after neoperating revenues
and expenses

Non-reciprocalinterfund activities:
Interfund reimbursements are repaymeiitsm the fund responsiblér particular

expenditures or expenstsother funds that initiallypaid for them. Reimbursements
arenot displayed separately within tfieancial statements
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Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
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For the Year Endedune 30, 207

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued):
Basis of presentation (continued):
Measurement focus and basisao€ounting (continued):
Fund equity:
Governmentvide financial statements:
Net position:
The Town's net position has been segregated into the following three components:

Net investment in capital assetsepresents the net book value ofcdpital assets
less the outstanding balances of bonds and other alethitdeferred inflows of
resources, if any, used to acquire, construct or improve these assets, increased by
deferred outflows of resources related to those assets, if any.

Restrictedi assets that have been limited to uses specified either externally by
creditors, contributors, laws or regulations of other governments or internally by
enabling legislation or law; reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
related to the &ricted assets.

Unrestricted a residual category for the balance of net position
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued):
Basis of presentation (continued):
Measurement focus and basis of accounting (continued):

Fund equity(continued)
Governmental fund financial statements:

The Townés fund balance is reported in the

Non-spendablé amounts that cannot be spent because they are either a) not in spendable
form or b) legally or contraatlly required to be maintained intact

Restrictedi amounts that have been restricted to specific purposes either by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or imposed by law
through constitutional provisions enabling legislation

Committedi amounts constrained to specific purposes by the Town, using its highest level
of decisionmaking authority

Commitments will only be used for specific purposes pursuant to a formal action of the
Town Council. Town CounkResolution is required to approve, modify, or rescind a
fund balance commitment.

Assignedi amounts that are intended by the Town to be used for specific purposes, but are
neither restricted nor committed

The Town Council delegates to the Town Adisirator or designee the authority to
assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. Such assignments cannot exceed th
available (spendable, unrestricted, uncommitted) fund balance in any particular fund.

Unassigned amounts available for any purpgos

Expenditures may be incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted (committed,
assigned, or unassigned) amounts are available. Composition of the ending fund balance will be
determined by applying the following: In those instancesreitboth restricted and unrestricted
amounts are available, restricted amounts will be considered to have been spent first (as allowed an
in compliance with stated and specified terms or requirements), followed by committed amounts,
followed by assignednaounts, and then unassigned amounts.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued):
Basis of presentation (continued):

Measurement focus and basis of accounting (continued):
Pensions
Empl oyeesd Retirement System plan (ERS)

For purpose®f measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Employeesd Ret itrod merdtu cSy sotnesm
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by ERS. For th
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with thenefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Teachersé Survivors Benefit plan (TSB)

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expefejation about the fiduciary net
position of the Teachersd Survivors Benefit
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by TSB. For thi
purpose, benefit paymentincluding refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued):
Basis of presentatio(continued):
Measurement focus and basis of accounting (continued):
Intergovernmental revenues

State aid is recognized as revenue in the year in which funds are appropriated by the Rhode Islan
General Assembly, provided they are collected dutediscal year.

Claims and Judgements

The Town is exposed with respect to risks including, but not limited to, property damages, personal
injury and workers' compensation. In the governmental fund finasigis@mentsexpenditures for
claims and judments are recorded on the basis of whether the liability has matured in the current
period. The Town and the School Departmenteamembers of the Rhode Islandeihocal Risk
ManagemenTrust(the Trust). The Trust was established to offer a viable alieeto commercial
insurance for public entities through intergovernmental pooling of Fis&.Trust is a protected, self
insurancep | an. The Town pays annual premi ums f
compensation coverage. The membership ppdiiin agreement provides that, in return for the
paymentof theannual premiumthe Trust member transfers tfieancialresponsibility fodoss,but

only according to the conditions of coverage and up to the stated maximum amount of insurance
purchased Y the Town or School Department. In the Governmerde financial statements, the
estimated liability for all claims anddgmentds recorded as a liability and as an expense.

Use of estimates:

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformitly accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptior
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets ant
liabilities at the datef the basic financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenditures and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policigontinued):
Basis of presentation (continued):
Measurement focus and basis of accounting (continued):

Reconciliation of Governmeniwide Net Position and~und Financial Statements Fund
Balance

The governmental fund Balance Sheet includes a recormmlidtetweenfund balance- total
governmental fundandnet position- governmental activitieasreportedin the Governmentvide
Statement of Net Position. One element of teabnciliationexplains thatlong-term liabilities are
not due angbayableinthec ur r ent peri od and, therefore, ar ¢

Explanation of Certain Differences betweettie Governmental Fund Statemeraf Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes Fund Balance and the Governmentide Statement of Activities

The governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
includes reconciliation betwe@et changes in fund balance®tal governmental funds amthanges

in net position of governmental activities reported ithe Govenmentwide Statement of Activities.

One element of the reconciliation states that "the governmental funds report principal repayments on
debt obligations as an expenditure.”

Another element of that reconciliation states tHRevenues in the StatemesiftActivities that do

not provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues in goverrioretgdlAlso,

the allowance adjustment on the ambulance receivables affects the revenue recorded in the Stateme
of Activities.

Recent accounting fonouncements:

For the fiscal year endingune 30, 202, the Town adoptethe provisions oStatement No75 of

the Governmental Accounting Standards BoaBAEB) Accounting ad Financial reporting for
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than Pension pl&#sSB 75 requires the neDPEBIiability

to be measured and reported as the @RIEBIiability less the amountof thePEBp | ands f i d
net position. In addition, GASE5 establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities,
deferred outflows ofesources and deferred inflows of resources, and expenses. Due to the adoption
of GASB 75, the Town has restated its Z0@pening net position, resulting is a decremsaet
position of $6,936429at July 1, 206.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued):
Basis of presentation (continued):

Measurement focus and basis of accounting (continued):
Recent accounting pronouncemengsontinued)

For the fiscal year ending June 30, Z0the Town adopted the provisions of Statement Mmf7
the Governmental Accounting Standards Bo&idancial reporting for Postemployment Benefit
Plans Other than Pension plat&ASB 74). GASB 7 establishes new accating and financial
reporting standards for Other Postemployment Benefit plans.

Effective for thefiscal year ending June 30, 2017, the Tawdoptedhe provisions of Statement No,

77 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Bodak Abatement Disobures(GASB 77).

GASB 77 establishes required financial reporting disclosures for governments that enter into tax
abatement agreement§he Town will include additional disclosure in the financial statements.

2. Cash Deposits and Investments

The State ofRhode Island requirgkatcertain uninsured deposits balateralized. Section 3%0.1-

7 of the General Laws of the State of Rhode Island, dealing with the collateralization of public
deposits, requires that all tintepositswith maturities of greatethan 60 days and all deposits in
institutions that do nomeet theminimum capital requirements of its Federal regulator must be
collateralized.

Deposits

At June 30, 2017, the carrying amount of the Town's cash and cash equivalents28@9 %176
(including Fiduciary Funds and cash held @scrav) while the bankbalancewas$24,264279. Of
the bank balance 1§%45778was covered by federal depository insura$d8,457,642 was covered
by collateralization agreemerasd $4,160,859 was uninsured. Reconciliation to Governmertide
Statement of Net Position:

Carrying Amount

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 23,797,176
Less: Fiduciary fund cash, including time deposits
(not included in the Government-wide statement) (1,556,757
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents Reported in the
Financial Statements $ 22,240,419
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2. Cash Deposits and Investments (continued)

Custodial creditisk for depositss the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, the Town will not be able to recover deposits or will notab& to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Town has a formal deposit policy for
custodial credit risk, which follows State Laws as described below.

Restricted CasliHeld in Escrow

Restricted cash held e@scrow of $B5,043reported in the Statement of Net Position at June 3@, 201
consists ofundsreportedin the Businesgype Activities (Proprietary Fund) representing cash held
in escrow by Rhode Island Housing for administration of theT® Septic Syem Loan Program

Investments

Investments are stated at fair value which is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The Town followsthe guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 72, "Fair Value Measurement and Application”.

In determining fair value, the Town uses various valuation approaches, as appropriate in the
circumstances. GASBt&ement No. 72 establishes a fair value hierarchy for inputs used in measuring
fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs
by requiring that the most observable inputs be used when available. Thalf& hierarchy is
categorized into three levels based on the inputs as follows:

Level1- Unadjusted quoted priced in active markets that are accessibéeratasuresnt date
for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2- Inputs other than quoteqatices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities that are
observable either directly or indirectly for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.
Level3- Unobservablénputsfor theasseor liability (supportedy little or nomarketactivity).
Level 3 inputs include management's own assumption about the assumptions that
market participants would use pricing the asset or liability (including assumptions
aboutrisk).
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2. Cash Deposits and Investments (continued)

The following is adescriptionof the valuation methodologiesedfor assets antiabilities measured
at fair value:

Mutual funds:Valued at the daily closing price as reported by the fund. Mutual funds held by the
Town are operended mutual funds that are registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. These funds are required to publish their datlgsset value (NAV) ando
transact at that price. The mutual funds help by the Town are deemed to be actively traded.

Fixed income securitie¥alued using market quotations or prices obtained from independent pricing
sources which may employ various pricing methods to value the investments, including
matrix pricingbasedon quoted prices for securities with similar coupons, ratings and
maturities.

The following table summarizes the assetsladilities of the Town for which fair values are
determined on eecurring basis as of June 30, Z01

Fair
Description Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Mututal Funds
Domestic Equity $ 14,436,726 $ 14,436,726 $ - $ -
Global Real Estate 2,625,866 2,625,866 - -
International equity 7,334,102 7,334,102 - -
Emerging Markets 5,281,240 5,281,240 - -
Large Cap Multi-Style Fund 5,241,498 5,241,498 - -
Growth Fund 266,652 266,652 - -
Fixed Income Securities 17,983,934 17,983,934 - -
$ 53,170,018 $ 53,170,018 $ - $ -

The following are maturities dhe Towrd debt related securities:

Fair 0-3 3-5 Over
Description Value Years Years 5 Years
Fixed Income Securities $ 17983934 $ 3360145 $ 6,036,196 $ 8,587,593
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2. Cash Deposits and Investments (oauned)

Average ratings of the investments comprising the debt related secabites, as determined

by Standards &Poor'sare adollows:
Fixed Income

Securities
AAA $ 8,188,862
AA 4,355,241
A 2,956,870
BBB 2,432,934
BB 18,655
B and Below 31,372
Total $ 17,983,934

Concentration of Credit Risk

At June 30, 201,Zhe Town had diversified portfolioin its General Fund andensiorand OPEB
TrustFunds were investad variousmutual funds anéixed incomesecurities, adetailed above.

Interest Rate Risk

The Town's investmentseheldin mutualfundswhich do notbearspecifiedinterestrates. The
rate ofreturnon thesanvestments islependenbn the operatingesultsof the entities included
in the portfolio of the mutual funds as well as oveealbnomicconditions.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial creditiskis the risk thatin the evenof financialinstitutionfailure,the Town's deposits
and/or investmentsmay not be returned.The Town doesnot believethatit hasa significant
custodial credit risk as all the investments are registanetheld inthe nameof the Town.
Additionally, the Town's deposgolicy requiresthatdepositsbe placed irfinancialinstitutions
thatare FDIOnsured. Th& own deposits armaintainedn highly rated financial institutions and
the ratingsof theseanstitutionsis reviewedby managementnaperiodicbasis.
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2. CashDeposits and Investments (continued)

As of June 30, 202, the followingpension investments represent 5% or more of the
Town Plan's neposition:

Dimensional Fund Advisors:

Vanguard Total Bond $ 9,027,176
Vanguard Total International Bond 5,576,013
Five Year Fixed Income 3,930,786
US Core Equity 2 Portfolio 7,005,944
International Core Equity 1,507,811
International Vector Equity 3,269,549
US Vector Equity Portfolio 7,147,394
Global Real Estate 2,625,866
AQR Emerging Multi Style R6 4,469,585
Emerging Market Core 3,368,396
AQR:
Large Cap Multi-Style 5,241,498

As of June30, 2017 all of the fundsn the OBEB Trust Fund were investaa mutual
funds

3. Budgetary and Legal Compliance

The General Fundand the PubliSchool Operations Fund arsubject to arannual
operating budgeiThe annual operating budgets' appropriation amoargsupported
by revenuesstimates and can be amenbgeither a special financial voter referendum
or by theTown Council.

Actual revenueandexpendituresn the BudgetarnBasisStatements of Revenues and
Expenditures for theGeneral Fund and thePublicSchool OperationsFund are
presented oithe budgetary basis whighcludesthe net effect of nonbudgeting for
certainotheritems. Thus, the actuavenuesandexpendituregsliffer from thosein the
GovernmentalFund financial statementswhich are presentedin accordancewith
accountingprinciplesgenerallyacceptedn the United Stateof America.
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3. Budgetary and Legal Compliance (continued)

Thefollowing individual fundsreporteddeficitsin theunreservedund balancesn the
fundfinancialstatementat June30,2017:

Town Special Revenue Funds

CDBG $ (50,271)
Dog Fund (6,563)
Cops SRO (14,288)
Synar Tobacco Survey (2,021)

School Special Revenue Funds

Title II, Part A (51)
Perkins (166)

Town Capital Projects Funds

08-09 Warrants (19,027)
09-10 Warrants (5,743)
12-13 Warrants (1,148,569

Enterprise funds

Wind Turbine Generator | (387,418;
Summer School (234)
Total $ (1,634,351

Management will derive an admiriative plan to fund the deficits noted above.
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4. Capital Assets

Capitd assemctivity for the year endedune30, 207 is asfollows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2016 Increases Decreases June 30, 2017
Governmental Activities:
Nondepreciable assets:
Land $ 4755279 $ - 3 - 3% 4,755,279
Land easements 1,420,000 - - 1,420,000
Construction in progress 177,715 245,864 177,715 245,864
Total capital assets not being depreciated 6,352,994 245,864 177,715 6,421,143
Depreciable assets:
Land improvements 735,736 308,338 - 1,044,074
Buildings 21,918,438 553,025 - 22,471,462
Buildings and improvements 9,037,446 1,849,473 - 10,886,919
Machinery and equipment 8,284,910 1,492,412 10,820 9,766,502
Construction equipment 396,909 - - 396,909
Infrastructure 26,233,440 2,917,655 - 29,151,095
Vehicles 5,146,502 515,592 - 5,662,094
Total Capital assets being depreciated 71,753,381 7,636,494 10,820 79,379,055
Total Capital Assets 78,106,375 7,882,358 188,535 85,800,198
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements 430,612 64,871 - 495,483
Buildings 16,037,238 302,992 - 16,340,230
Buildings and improvements 2,745,625 561,324 - 3,306,949
Machinery and equipment 5,402,986 418,949 3,991 5,817,944
Construction equipment 370,357 10,811 - 381,169
Infrastructure 15,815,202 815,627 - 16,630,829
Vehicles 3,145,614 249,408 - 3,395,022
Total Accumulated Depreciation 43,947,634 2,423,983 3,991 46,367,626
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 34,158,741 $ 5458376 $ 184544 $ 39,432,572
Business-Type Activities
Nondepreciable assets:
Land $ 37,251 $ - 8 - $ 37,251
Total Capital assets not being depreciated 37,251 - - 37,251
Depreciable assets:
Land improvements - - - -
Buildings and improvements 215477 - - 215477
Machinery and equipment 252,907 - - 252,907
Total Capital assets being depreciated 468,384 - - 468,384
Total Capital Assets 505,635 - - 505,635
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements - - - -
Buildings and improvements 5,028 8,619 - 13,647
Machinery and equipment 71524 13,326 - 84,850
Total Accumulated Depreciation 76,552 21,945 - 98,497
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 429083 $ (21.945) $ - 8 407.138
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4. Capital Assets (continued)

Depreciation expese was charged to governmental functions as follows

General government $ 114,188
Public safety 328,554
Public works 820,107
Community service 118,124
Education 1,043,010

Total Depreciation Expense $ 2,423,983

Depreciation expense wabarged to businedgpe activitiesas follows

School lunch $ 4,754
Transfer Station 17,191
Total Depreciation Expense $ 21,945

5. Lease Revenue

The Town receives lease ywaents for a communication tower leased to several
communication companies. Future minimum rental payments to be received for these leases
are as follows:

Governmental
Year Ended June 30, Activities

2018 $ 106,176

2019 113,885

2020 116,939

2021 120,146

2022 123,514

Total $ 580,660

6. Stewardship, Compliance aAadcountability

The Town issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition of
equipment, asvell asconstruction andmprovementsto capital facilities. General
obligation bonds have been issued for both general governmental and school
department activitiedn addition general obligation bonds haveenissuedo refund
previouslyoutstandinggenerabbligationbonds. The Town'degaldebt margin as set
forth by State statute Isnited to three percent of the total taxable assessed value and
approximates $9350,150 Exceptions apply to bonds financed from #tarrevenues

and special exemptions are granted for other purposes as well. At June B@he&01
Town's bonds outstanding totale24#$32532
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7. Long-Term Obligations

The following is a summary of changes in letegm debt for the year ended June 30, 2017

Amount Amounts
of Original Date of Interest Date of Balance, Transfersin  Transfers Out Balance, Due Within
Description of Purpose Issue Issue Rates Maturity 6/30/2016 & Additions & Retirements 6/30/2017 One Year
Governmental Activities:
General obligation, revenue bonds, and loans:
Portsmouth Middle School sprinklers $ 1,900,000 5/16/2007 4.00-550%  4/1/2022 $ 125000 $ - $ 125,000 - 8 -
Portsmouth High School Sprinklers $ 1,100,000 8/7/2008  3.75-6.00%  5/15/2024 575,000 - 75,000 500,000 75,000
School Improvements (refunding bond) $ 4,655,000 6/4/2009 2.00-5.00% 11/1/2020 2,385,000 - 495,000 1,890,000 485,000
Open Space/Recreation Bond $ 1,980,000 6/15/2010 2.00-4.00%  6/15/2025 1,105,000 - 125,000 980,000 125,000
Building Repairs $ 350,000 6/12/2012 1.326%  6/30/2017 69,942 - 69,942 -
Building Repairs $ 350,000 6/12/2012 1.326%  6/30/2017 69,942 - 69,942
School Information Technology $ 350,000 6/12/2012 1.326%  6/30/2017 69,942 - 69,942
General Obligation Refunding Bond - Series A
Open Space/Recreation Bond $ 250,000  5/23/2013 2.35%  2/15/2028 200,739 - 16,626 184,113 16,626
Town Improvements $ 562,000 5/23/2013 2.35%  2/15/2028 451,262 - 37,375 413,887 37,374
General Obligation Refunding Bond - SeriesB$ 927,000  5/23/2013  .53%-1.7%  2/15/2019 446,000 - 152,000 294,000 149,000
School Projects $ 1,100,000 8/28/2013 3.06% 6/30/2028 805,000 - 125,000 680,000 125,000
Town Projects $ 1505000 10/23/2014  1.75%-4% 10/15/2024 1,170,598 - 130,066 1,040,532 130,066
Open Space $ 600,000 11/18/2015 2.00-4.00% 10/1/2035 600,000 - 30,371 569,629 30,371
School Projects $ 471500 11/18/2015 2.00-4.00% 10/1/2035 471,500 - 23,867 447,633 23,867
Town Projects $ 3,373,500 11/18/2015 2.00-4.00% 10/1/2035 3,373,500 - 170,762 3,202,738 170,762
School Projects $ 1575000 12/22/2015 3.00-5.00% 5/15/2026 1,575,000 - 165,000 1,410,000 165,000
School Projects $ 605000 12/22/2015 3.00-5.00% 5/15/2022 605,000 - 605,000 125,000
Town projects-Police Station $ 10,000,000  2/9/2017 3.00-5.00%  2/1/2038 - 10,000,000 10,000,000
Town projects-recreational $ 520,000 2/9/2017  3.00-5.00%  2/1/2038 - 520,000 520,000
Town projects $ 648,861 2/9/2017  3.00-5.00%  2/1/2038 - 648,861 648,861
School improvements $ 646,139 2/9/2017  3.00-5.00%  2/1/2038 - 646,139 646,139
Town legal settlement $ 600,000 2/9/2017  2.25-2.65%  2/1/2023 - 600,000 600,000
Total general obligation bonds, revenue bonds, and loans. 14,098,425 12,415,000 1,880,893 24,632,532 1,658,066
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7. Long-Term Obligations (continued)

Governmental Activities (continued):
Capital lease obligations:

School IT

Town IT & Vehicles

Town Vehicles

Town Vehicles

School

Total capital lease obligations

Deferred amount for issuance premiums
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Net OPEB Liability
Total governmental funds long-term debt

Business-Type Activities:

General obligation bonds and loans;
Transfer Station Construction Project
Transfer Station Renovation Project
Septic Loan Program

Total business-type activities long-term debt

Total long-term obligations

$ 271463  7/15/2015 511%  7/15/2019 213,307 52,595 160,712 53,966
$ 335000 7/15/2015 3.75%  8/1/2018 248,491 - 80,850 167,641 82,814
$ 393991  8/12/2016 401%  8/15/2022 103,000 290,991 63,351 330,640 49,679
$ 151991  8/12/2016 3.76%  8/15/2018 151,991 53,260 98,731 48,111
$ 280974  7/1512016 2.42%  7/15/2020 289,974 69,589 220,385 60,042
564,798 732,956 319,645 978,109 294,612
611,188 296,211 64,566 842,832 72,858
2,011,457 256,646 1,754,811 131,611

71,542,424 116,270 71,658,694

22379150 2318398 24,697,548
111207442 15878835 2521750 124564527 2,157,147
$ 171000 6/1202012  1326%  6/30/2017 34,172 34,172 . -
$ 200000 10/23/2014  1.75%-4% 10/15/2024 179,402 19,934 159,468 19,934
$ 415000 11/18/2015 234-3.236%  10/1/2025 415,000 45,000 370,000 45,000
628,574 99,106 529,468 64,934
$ 111,836,016 §$ 15878835 $ 2,620,856 $ 125093995 $ 2,222,081
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8. Risk Management

Through their operations, the Town and the School Department are exposed to various risks of los
related, but not limited tdorts, general liability, errors and omissions, property losses due to theft,
damage, or destruction, and employee injuries, each of which is insured through a public entity risk
pool. The Town and the School Department are also exposed to risk losd telataims for
unemployment, for which the Town and the School Department retain the ledso

TheTownandtheSchoolDepartmenaremember®ftheRhodeslandinterlocalRiskManagement

Trust (the Trust), a nonprofit public entity risk pool whiphovides insurance coverage to
participants in exchange for an annual premium and agbeoshare of certain administrative
expenses. Coverage is provided in accordance with each member's policy, subject to maximun
insurable limits and deductibles, thrdug pooling of risks among participants, supplemented by
commercial reinsurance for excess losses. Management believes the Trust's reserves to be adequ
to meet all reported claims, as well as an estimate of potential claims for losses incurred but no
reported. Accordingly, no accrual has been made for potential liabilities arising from risks once they
havebeentransferredo the Trust. The Town andthe SchoolDepartmentiremembersof the Trust,

a joint purchasing group which provides health and densalrance coverage to participants in
exchangédor apremium.Therehavebeemo significantreductionsn insurance coveragiiringthe

year ended June 30, 2Z0&nd no settlements exceeding the insurance coverage in the past three
years.

Upon joiningthe Trust, members execute a member agreement. That document, pursuant to whict
the Trust was established and operates, outlines the rights and responsibilities of both the membe
andtheTrust.Members otheTrust participatedh the Trust'shealthinsurance plaadministeredy

Blue CrossBlue Shieldof Rhodelsland(BCBSRI).

Using the rate calculations prepared by BCBSRI for individually rated entities, the Trust sets annual
contributionratesfor thesubscribersef eachmembeifor eachprogramoffered. TheTrustagreement
requires that those contribution rates be set at a level sufficient, in the aggregate, to satisfy the
funding requirements of the Trust. The contributions of each member are deposited in the Trust's
general fund, and are usedpay for claims, reinsurance and all administrative expenses. The Trust
agreemenprovidesfor anannuaindependenauditof its financialstatements.
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8. Risk Management (continued)

The Group agreement provides the Trust's Board of Directatiscaetionary, fully allocable
assessment feature with respect to specified circumstances. After it has been a meéraJeustf

for an initial threeyear period, a member may withdraw from the Trust by providing the Trust's Board
of Directorswith90d ay s 6 noti ce.

Interfund Balances

TheTownreports interfund balancéetweemmany ofits funds. Theotalsof all balances agree
with the sum of interfund balances presented in the fund statements.

Interfund receivables and payables are as follows:

Due from Due to Other Financing Other Financing
Other Funds Other Funds Sources Uses

Major Governmental Funds
General fund $ - $11,747540 $ 250,000 $ 33,016,192
School unrestricted fund 4,262,388 4,943,460 31,599,566 638,354
Town capital projects 11,229,568 - 770,707
Non-Major Governmental Funds
Town special revenue 737,982 225,553 - 100,000
School special revenue 809,605 623,401 - -
Town capital projects 767,035 1,173,343 245,919 250,000
School capital projects 6,243,803 5,463,722 634,013 -
Permanent funds 4,072 - - -
Proprietary Funds
School cafeteria fund 1,616,848 1,547,203 2,032 -
Transfer station 161,982 - - -
Wind turbine generator fund - 387,418 250,000 -
Summer school 7,309 7,543 2,309 -
Septic system loan program 35,899 - - -
Fiduciary Funds
Town pension trust - 5,000 - -
OPEB trust - - 250,000 -
Agency funds 247,692 - - -
Totals $ 26,124,183 $ 26,124,183 $ 34,004,546 $ 34,004,546
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10. Fund Balances

The Townhas classifiedjovernmental funthalancesatJune 302017asfollows:

Fund Balances
Nonspendable
In Form
Restricted for
General government
Public safety programs
Educational purposes
Public works and social services
Community services
Capital projects
Committed to
Educational purposes
Capital projects
Assigned to
Open space
Unassigned

Major Funds Non-Major Funds
General Town Capital ~ Town Special School Special Town Capital ~ School Capital ~ Permanent

Fund Project Fund Revenue Revenue Projects Projects Funds Total
$ 729719 $ - 3 - $ - 8 - 8 - $ 161552 $ 891271
708,585 - - - - 708,585
207,157 - - - - 207,157
- 408,188 - - - 408,188
92,725 - 92,725
- 8,012 - - 8,012
10,716,755 - 305,153 778,207 - 11,800,115
1,260,145 - - 1,260,145
- 586,905 - - 586,905
9,378 - - - - - 9,378
6,912,353 - (73,143) (217) (1,173,339) - - 5,665,654

$ 8911595 ¢ 10,716,755 $ 943336 $ 407971 $ (281,281) $ 778207 $ 161552 $ 21,638,135
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11. PostEmployment Health Care Benefits
Other PostEmployment Benefits (OPEB) Town Employees

PlanDescription

Through its singleemployer defined benefit plan (OPEB Plarthe Town provides
postretirement healthcare benefits to all Town employees who meet years of service and age
requirements. For police and fimmployeesupon death of the retiree, health care coverage
continues to the unmarried surviving spouse and degperahildren up to age 10. For general
employees, retiree health care coverage is discontinued upon death of the retiree. The plan's
provisions may be amended by the Town and the Trustees of the plan. The trust is accounted for
as an OPEB trust fund in tHewn' s financial statements.

The most recent actuarial valuation for the OPEB Plan was perfornoédase 30, 2017.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

a. Basis ofAccounting

The OPEB activity is accounted for on #hecrual basis of accounting. Contributions are
recognized when they are due, pursuant to formal commitments and contractual
requirements. Investment income is recognized when ealguknses (benefits and
administration) are recognized when they are ahat payable in accordance with terms

of the planAdministration costs are generally financed through the T©@aneral Fund.

b. Benefits and Employe€ontributions:

The Trust paid 100% of the amount for medical and denttsdacurred by eligible
retirees, which totaled&0,092for the year ended June 30, Z01

Public Works, Fire and Police contributed 0.25%, 1.5% and 1.0% of salagctiesty,
to the OPEB Trust which amounted ®5§810in employee contributions and $1,169,270
in employer contributionfor the year ended June 30, Z01

The Town pays 100% of the cost of the individual health care and dental insurance for all
retiredeligible employeesuntil Medicareeligibility, exceptfor Public Works employees
who contribute20%of themedicalanddentalpremiums

74



Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Endedune 30, 207

11.PostEmployment Health Care Benefits (continued)
Other PostEmployment Benefits (OPEB) Town Employeegcontinued)

As of June 30, 201 The plan membership data is as follows:

Inactive or
Beneficiaries
Active Receiving
Description Employees Benefits Total
Number 117 50 167
Investment policy
The Townos pol icy i n regard to the all oc:

amended by the committee by a majority vote of its members. It is the policy of the Town to
pursue an investment strategy that reducesthebugh the prudent diversification of the
portfolio across a broad selection of di ¢
adopted asset allocation policy as of June 30, 2017.

Target

Asset Class Allocation

US Large Cap Equity 33.65%
US Mid Cap Equity 7.55%
US Small Cap Equity 2.10%

International Equity 11.05%
EM Equity 1.65%

US Aggreagate Bonds 16.05%
U.S. Short Duration 9.70%
US High Yield Bonds 4.85%
TIPS 3.40%

Diversifying Strategies 10.00%

Total 100.00%

Concentrations
There were neoncentrations noted as of June 30, 2017.
Rate of return

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the annual meegghted rate of return on investments, net of
investment expense was 5.50%. The meneighted rate of return expresses investment performance,
net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.
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11.PostEmployment Health Care Benefits (continued)

Other PostEmployment Benefits (OPEB) Town EmployeegContinued)
Net OPEB Liability of the Town

The components of the n@PEB liability of the Town at June 30, 2017 were as follows:

Total OPEB liability $ 21,874,794
Plans fiduciary net position 1,115,701
Town's net OPEB liability $ 20,759,093

Plan net position as a percentage
of the total OPEB liability 5.10%

Actuarial Methodsand Assumptions

Actuarialvaluations of an ongoing planvolve estimates othe value of reported amounénd
assumptions about the probability of occurreateventsfar into the future. Examplesclude
assumptionsabout future employment mortality, and the healthcareost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded statfishe plan andthe annualrequired contributions of the
employerare subjecto continualrevisionasactualresultsarecomparedvith pastexpectations
andnew estimates are made about the futdree schedule ofunding progresspresented as
requiredsupplementary information followinthe notesto basic financiaktatementspresents
multiyear trend information about whethethe actuarial valueof plan asset$s increasing or
decreasingvertime relative to the actuaribility for benefits.

Projectionf benefitsfor financialreportingpurposesrebasednthesubstantiveplan(theplan
asunderstood byhe employer anglan members) anihclude thetypesof benefitsprovided at
the timeof eachvaluation. The actuariahethodsandassumptionsised includgéechniques that
aredesignedo reducethe effectsof shortterm volatility in actuarialaccruedliabilities andthe
actuarialvalueof assetsgonsistentvith thelong-termperspectivef thecalculations
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11.PostEmployment Health Care Benefits (continued)
Other PostEmployment Benefits (OPEB) Town EmployeegContinued)

Key assumptions

Valuation Date: Actuarially Determined Contribution was calculated as of June 30, 2017.
Actuarial Cost Method: Entry Age Normal Level % of salary method where:
Aservice Cost for each individual

to date of retirement, is sufficient to pay for the participant's benefit at
retirement; and

Aannual Service Cost is a constan
that is assumed to increase according to Payroll Growth.

Asset-Valuation Method: Market Value of Assets as of the Measurement Date, June 30, 2017.

Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment Rate of Return: 5.50%, net of OPEB plan investment expense

Medical inflation For medical/rx benefits, the trend rates have been reset to an initial
rate of 9.00% decreasing by 0.50% annually to an ultimate rate of 5.00%

Inflation: 3.50% as of June 30, 2017 and for future periods

Salary Increases: 3.50% annually as of June 30, 2017 and for future pe

Pre-Retirement Mortality: RPH-2015 total database set mortality table fully generational using
Scale MP-2015 to RPH-2016.

Assumed rate of retirement: 40% for 20 or more years of service, 60% for age 60 with 25 years of
service, and 60% for age 65 with 10 or more years of service

Marriage assumptions 80% of males and 80% of females assumed to be married with wives to
be three years younger than their husbands

Changes in Assumptions: Effective June 30, 2017
A Discount rate is 5.50% previous

The longterm expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a-building
block method in which besstimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net ofinvestment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges a
combined to produce the lottgrm expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates
of return by the target asset allocation percentage anddiygaelxpected inflation. Best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the target asset allocation as of Jur
30, 2017 are summarized in the following table:
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11.PostEmployment Health Care Benefits (continued)

Other PostEmployment Benefits (OPEB) Town EmployeegContinued)

Asset Class

Long-term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

US Large Cap Equity
US Mid Cap Equity

US Small Cap Equity
International Equity
EM Equity

US Aggreagate Bonds
U.S. Short Duration
US High Yield Bonds
TIPS

Diversifying Strategies

|. Real Rate of Return
II. Inflation Assumption

lll. Total Nominal Return [I. + I1.]

Changes in the Net OPEB Lialtyi

6.40%
7.90%
7.50%
7.20%
9.70%
2.60%
2.80%
4.90%
2.80%
4.88%

5.50%
3.50%

©
o
S
>

Increase (Decrease)

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability

Balance at June 30, 2016 $19,058,259 $ 691,217 $ 18,367,042
Service cost 826,446 - 826,446
Interest on net OPEB liability and service cost 564,081 - 564,081
Differences between actual and expected experience 2,651,611 - 2,651,611
Changes in assumptions (335,511) - (335,511)
Benefit payments, including refunds (890,092) (890,092) -

Trust administrative expenses (458) 458

Contributions - employer - 1,169,270 (1,169,270
Contributions - active employees 55,310 (55,310)
Net investment income - 90,454 (90,454)
Net changes 2,816,535 424,484 2,392,051
Balances at June 30, 2017 $21,874,794 $ 1,115,701 $ 20,759,093
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11.PostEmployment Health Cafigenefits (continued)
Other PostEmployment Benefits (OPEB) Town EmployeegContinued)

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.5 percent. The projection of cash flow:
used to determine the discount rate assumed that Town contributions will be made at rates equal to tt
actuarially determined contribution rates. Based t hose assumptions, the
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan
members. Therefore, the lotgrm expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the net OPEB I iabilit)
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate thatpertentaggoint lower .71
percent) or 1percentageoint higher 4.71 percent) than the current discount rate:

Impact of 1% Change in Discount Rate

1% Decrease Current discount 1% Increase
(2.71%) rate (3.71%) (4.71%)
Total OPEB liability 23,003,570 20,759,093 18,794,910

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates

Thefollowingpr esent s the net OPEB I|liability of the Town,
be if it were calculated using healthcare cost 79 trend rates thatpereehtaggoint lower (8.0 percent
decreasing to 4.0 percent) epércentaggoint higher (10.0 percent decreasing to 6.0 percent) than the current
healthcare cost trend rates:

Impact of 1% Change in Healthcare Trend Rate

1% Decrease Current trend 1% Increase
(8.00% rate (9.00% (10.00%
decreasing to decreasing to decreasing to
4.00%) 5.00%) 6.00%)
Total OPEB liability 18,625,759 20,759,093 23,247,018
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11. PostEmployment Health Care Benefits (continued)

Other PostEmployment Benefits (OPEB) Town EmployeegContinued)

OPEB expense and deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2017 the Town recognized OPEB expebh&1 @792 At June30, 2017, the
Townreported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPREBtffre following sources:

Deferred outflows of resources
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on OPEB plan investments $2,272,809

Deferred inflows of resources
Differences between actual and expected
experience 322,280

Total $1,950,529

Amountsreported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in
OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2018 $ 322,197
2019 322,197
2020 322,197
2021 322,198
2022 330,872
Thereafter 330,868

Other PostEmployment Benefits (OPEB) SchoolDepartment Employees

Plan Description

The School Department maintains and administers a seamggoyer OPEB benefit plahatcoversall
SchoolDepartmenemployeesvith fifteenyearsof service Theplanprovideshealthbenefitsand dental
insurance benefits to eligible retired employees and their beneficiaries. The plan's provisions may be
amended by the Portsmouth School Committeetb@drustees of the plan. The School Department
has noletestabisheda Trustto pre-fund OPB liabilities. Accordingly, the OPEB activiig accounted

for in theSchoolUnrestrictedrundin the Town'sfinancial statements.
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11. PostEmployment Health Care Benefits (continued)
Other PostEmployment Benefits (OPEB) School Department Employed€ontinued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

a. Basis ofAccounting

The OPEBactivity isaccounted for on the accrual basisiofountingContributions are recognized
when they are due, pursuant to formal commitments and contraetmalementsinvestment
income isrecognizedwhen earned. Expenses (benefits and administration) are recogriized
they are due and payable in accordance teitins of theplan. Administrativecostsaregenerally
financedthroughthe SchoolUnrestricted~und.

b. Benefits and Employe€ontributions:

For the year endetlne 30, 201the School Department pal@0%of the cost of individual health
care insurancand dental insurance benefits for all retired eligible employees, AFSCME and At
Will employees for six years, NEATeachersand Administrators for nine years, capped at the
premium cost at the time of retirement. The amountdaubese benefits arerided on an auvill
basis. Employees who decline health coverageestirementare eligible to receivea onetime
paymentof $3,500.

In 2012, the School Department changed tegree health benefits provisions. The School
Department explicit subsidywill be discontinued once the retiteescomededicare eligible, even

if they are still within the first six years oétirementMedicare eligible retirees may not be enrolled

in the School Department's plan unless they are among the grandfatheredretiresst who can
remain in the School Department's Medicare SupplepiantPremium reimbursement benefit for
employees who decline health care at retirement will be discontinued once the retiree is eligible for
Medicare, even if they are still withthefirst six yearsof retirement.

Effective Julyl, 2015, individual contract employees, which includesMll employees and those
that are nofNEA and norAFSCME are no longer eligible for retiree health benefits.

School Department funds pegtiremenbenefts on a payasyougo basis, whiclotaled$(146509)
for theyearended June 30, 2017.
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11. PostEmployment Health Care Benefits (continued)
Other PostEmployment Benefits (OPEB) School Department Employed€ontinued)

As of June 30, 201The plan membership data is as follows:

Inactive or
Beneficiaries
Active Receiving
Description Employees Benefits Total
Number 322 37 359

Net OPEB Liability of th&chool
The components of the net OPEB liability of ®ehoolat June 30, 2017 were as follows:

Total OPEB liability $ 3,938,455
Plans fiduciary net position -
Town's net OPEB liability $ 3,938,455

Plan net position as a percentage
of the total OPEB liability 0.00%

Actuarial Methodsand Assumptions

Actuarialvaluations of an ongoing planvolve estimates othe value of reported amounénd
assumptions about the probability of occurreateventsfar into the future. Examplesclude
assumptionsabout future employment mortality, and the healthcareost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded statfishe plan andthe annualrequired contributions of the
employerare subjecto continualrevisionasactualresultsarecomparedvith pastexpectations
andnew estimates are made about the futdree schedule ofunding progresspresented as
requiredsupplementary information followinthe notesto basic financiaktatementspresents
multiyear trend information about whethethe actuarial valueof plan assets$s increasing or
decreasingvertime relative to the actuarighbility for benefits.

Projectionsof benefitsfor financialreportingpurposesrebasednthesubstantivelan(theplan
asunderstood byhe employer anglanmembers) anthclude thetypesof benefitsprovided at
the timeof eachvaluation. The actuariahethodsandassumptionsised includg¢echniques that
aredesignedo reducethe effectsof shortterm volatility in actuarialaccruediabilities andthe
actuarialvalueof assetsgonsistentvith thelong-termperspectivef thecalculations
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11.PostEmployment Health Care Benefits (continued)

Other PostEmployment Benefits (OPEB) SchoolEmployeegContinued)

Key assumptions

Valuation Date:
Actuarial Cost Method:
Asset-Valuation Method:

Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return:
Medical inflation

Inflation:

Salary Increases:
Pre-Retirement Mortality:
Assumed rate of retirement:

Marriage assumptions

Changes in Assumptions:

Actuarially Determined Contribution was calculated as of June 30, 2017.
Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method
Market Value of Assets as of the Measurement Date, June 30, 2017.

5.50%, net of OPEB plan investment expense

8.00% for 2015, decreasing 0.5% per year, to an ultimate rate of 4.60%
for 2022 and later

2.60% as of June 30, 2017 and for future periods

2.60% annually as of June 30, 2017 and for future pe

RP-2014 adjusted to 2006 total database set mortality table projected
to valuation date with Scale MP-2015

25% for 10 or more years of service, 60% for age 60 with 25 years of
service, and 60% for age 65 with 10 or more years of service

85% of males and 85% of females assumed to be married with wives to
be three years younger than their husbands

Effective June 30, 2017

A Discount rate is 5.50% previous.|l

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

Liability Net Position Liability
Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 4,012,108 $ - $ 4,012,108
Service cost 98,924 - 98,924
Interest on net OPEB liability and service cost 111,824 - 111,824
Differences between actual and expected experience 222,319 - 222,319
Changes in assumptions (139,055) - (139,055)
Benefit payments, including refunds (367,665) (367,665) -
Contributions - employer - 367,665 (367,665)
Net investment income - - -
Net changes (73,653) - (73,653)
Balances at June 30, 2017 $ 3938455 $ - $ 3,938,455

Increase (Decrease)
Total OPEB  Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
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11.PostEmployment Health Care Befits (continued)

Other PostEmployment Benefits (OPEB) SchoolEmployeegContinued)

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.5 percent. The projection of cash flow:
used to determine the discount rate assumed that Town contributions will be made at rates equal to th
actuarially determined contribution rates. Based t hose assumptions, the
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan
members. Therefore, the lotgrm expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of thehoo] as well as what th8 ¢ h o et GPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that-pertentaggoint lower .56
percent) or 1percentagegoint higher 4.56 percent) than the current discount rate:

Impact of 1% Change in Discount Rate

1% Decrease Current discount 1% Increase
(2.56%) rate (3.56%) (4.56%)
Total OPEB liability 4,281,525 3,938,455 3,634,952

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates

The following presents the net OPEB liability of t8ehoo| as well as what th8 ¢ h o et GP&B liability
would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost 79 trend rates thapareehtaggoint lower (8.0 percent
decreasing to 4.0 percent) epércentageoint higher (10.0 percent decreasing to 6.0 percent) than the current
healthcare cost trend rates:

Impact of 1% Change in Healthcare Trend Rate

1% Decrease Current trend 1% Increase
(8.00% rate (9.00% (10.00%
decreasing to decreasing to decreasing to
4.00%) 5.00%) 6.00%)
Total OPEB liability 3,619,622 3,938,455 4,304,969
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11. PostEmployment Health Care Benefits (continued)

Other PostEmployment Benefits (OPEB) SchoolEmployeegContinued)

OPEB expense and deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2017 Sichoolrecognized OPEB expense dfl$6509). At June30, 2017,
the Townreported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to GeEBhe following sources:

Deferred outflows of resources
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on OPEB plan investments $ 194,529

Deferred inflows of resources
Differences between actual and expected
experience 121,673

Total $ 72,856

Amountsreported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in
OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2018 $ 10,408
2019 10,408
2020 10,408
2021 10,408
2022 10,408
Thereafter 20,816
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12.Pension Plans
(a) Townof PortsmouthRetirement Plan

PlanMembership

At June30,2017, pensionplanmembershigonsistedf thefollowing:

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 153
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 7
Active plan members 160
Subtotal 320

Benefit Provisions ad Contributions

The following benefit provision and contributioequirementsvere establisheand may be amended
by Townordinance.

Any participant, who has attained his or her normal retirement date, as defined in thegdigib)és
for a normal retirement benefit. Theonthly benefitpayableupon normalretirementis based on
average monthly salary multiplidxy credited service as follows:

PoliceEmployees 20 yearsof creditedservice.

60% of average monthly earningsducel plus 2%for each year
beyond 20 years subjettt a maximumof 70%. Doesnot applyto
Policeemployeedired after July 12010.

An employee's average monthly earnings are defined dsgtiest
grossannualsalary during thelast three years of employmie
Gross annualsalary includes base salary anidngevity, but
excludes overtime, clothing allowance, holigsay andany other
forms of compensation.

FireEmployees 20 yearsof credited service.

For service before July, 2013: 3% of average monthly earnings
peryearof creditedserviceto amaximum of 20years plus 2%or
each yeabeyond 20years.

For serviceon or afterJuly 1, 2013 and before June 30, 2016: 1%
of average monthlgarningger yearof creditedservice.

For service on or after July 2016 2% of averagemonthly
earnings peyearof credited service.
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12.Pension Plans (continued)

(a) Townof PortsmouthRetirement Plan(continued)

Benefit Provisions andContribution (continued)

Fire Employees

Fire Deputy and Fire Chief: 3% of average monthly earnings |
year of credited service to a maximum of 20 years plus 2%
each year beyond 20 years.

The maximum benefit is 74% of average monthly earnings.
An employeé saverage monthly earnings are defined as t
highest gross annual salary during the last three years
employment. Gross annual salary includes base sdtargevity
and E.M.T bonus, but excludes overtime, clothing allowanc
holiday pay and any otherrims of compensation.

Employees hired on or after July2013 are not entitled to Normi
Retirement Benefits.

Town NorrManagement Age 60 with 10 years of credited service.

Town Management

ForservicebeforeJuly 1,2013:2.5%  of averagenonthlyearnings
peryearof creditedserviceto amaximumof 27 years

For service on or after July 1, 2013 and before JuB018 1%
of averaganonthlyearninggeryearof creditedservice.

For service on or after July 1, 2016: 2% of average montt
earnings per year of creditsérvice.

The maximum benefit is 67.5% of average monthly

earnings. Benefit is reduced prata if less than 20 years of
service

Age 60 with 10 years of credited service.

3.0% of average monthly earnings per year of credited service
up to 20 years of service, plus 2.0% of average monthly earnil
per year of credited service to a maximum of 74%. For bene
accrual purposesredited service is frozen as of July 1, 2014

An employee's average monthly earnings are defined as
highes annual salary (base salary and longevity) during the fir
three years of employment.

Town Hall employees hired on or after July 1, 2012 are not elig
to participate in this Plan.
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12.Pension Plans (continued)

(a) Townof PortsmouthRetirement Plan(continued)

Benefit Provisions andContribution (continued)

School Employees

Age 60 with 10 years of creditesgrvice.

Non-Certified:

For service befor®©ctober 1,2013: 2.5%o0f average monthly
earnings per year of credited service.

For service on or after October 1, 2013: 1% of avenagethly
earningeryear ofcreditedservice.

Benefit isreduced preataif lessthan 20 yearsf service.
Non-certified employees hired aftetuly 1, 2012 and befor:
Octoberl, 2013 were transferred the definedcontributionplan
effective Octobelf, 2013.

Management:

2.5% of average monthly earningeryear of credited service.
Benefit isreduced preata forless than 20 yeaf service.

An employee's averagmonthly earningsare defined as base
annual salary and longevity pay averaged dherfinal three
years oemployment.

SchoolDepartmenemployees who amot School Management
and who are hiredn or after October 1, 2013 are not eligibde
participatein this Plan.

Public Works Employees Age 60 with10years of creditedervice.

For employees with lesban 10years of credited service aily

1, 2013 whowerehired beforeJune30, 2010:2.5% ofaverage
monthlyearnings per year afeditedserviceup to amaximum
of 25%. Benefitis reduced proataif lessthan 20 yearof

service.

For employeeswith 10 or more years afervice a®f June 30,
2013: 2.5%o0f average monthlgarningsper year of credited
serviceprior to July 12013 toa maximumof 67.5%.Benefitis
reduced praataif lessthan20 years of service.
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12.Pension Plans (continued)
(a) Townof PortsmouthRetirement Plan(continued)

Benefit Provisions andContribution (continued)

Public Works Employees An employee's average monthly earnirgs defined aannual
salary (base salary ahongevity) averaged over the final five
yearsof employment.

Employees hired on or afteluly 1, 2010 are not entitled tc
Normal RetiremenBenefits.

Employees are required to contribute to the Pldiolimvs:

Police employees 9.0% of gross annual earnings.
No contributions for employees hired on or after yl010

Fire employees 4.0% of gross annual earnings inclusive of base salary,
longevity, EMT bonus and holiday pay (previously, 4.0% of
basepay).

Fire Deputy and Fire Chief: 10.0% of gross annual earnings
inclusive ofbasesalary,longevity, EMT bonus and holiday
pay.

No contribution for employees hired on or after Jul2013.

Town employees Non-management:Effective Julyl, 2016, 5.0%previously,
6.0%) of base salary.
Management:No employee contributions after July 1, 2014.

School employees Non-Certified: 4% of gross annual salary.
Management: 6% of gross annual salary. 2% of gross annual
salary for employees hired befahely 1, 1991.

Public Works employees For participants with lesthan 10years of service who are eligible
for anOption1 benefit,4.0%of annual salary, until participant has
accrued 10 years sérvice.

No employee contributions after July2013 for otheemployees.

The Townis required to contribute an amouwétermined in accordance with the actuarial valuation. The
Town's contributions for the Town's Retirement Plan for the fiscal years ended JuneZ3@0204nd 205
were $3955207, $3,623290and $,054,721, respectively
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12.Pension Plans (continued)
(a) Townof PortsmouthRetirement Plan(continued)
Actuarial Methods and SignificanAssumptions

Basis of Accounting The Town Retirement Trust Fundisancial statements are prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting?lan member contributions are recognized the period in whichthe
contributions are due. Employer contributions are recognized when due and the ematoyede a
formal commitmentto provide the contributions. Benefits andefunds arerecognizedwhen due and
payable in accordance witermsof theplan.

Method Used to Value Investmentiivestmentsre reportable at fair value

Investments

Investments are reported at fair valbased on quotations from applicable naticgeaurities exchanges.
Unrealized gains and losses from changefair value are recognized as/estmentncome. The State

does not have pertinent laws regarding investments that apply to cities and towns. The Town does not have
an investment policy fozustodial credit risk or other risks other than those relating to its pension trust fund
and OPEB trust fund (Managdéunds) The Town's Pension/OPEB Trust Fuhvestment Advisory
Committees responsible for the supervision of the investment of the 'Bowanaged Funds investments

with the objective of preserving capital and investing with care to minimize thefriarge losses.

Target
Asset Class Allocation
Equities 65%
Fixed Income 34%
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1%
Total 100%

Pension assetse valued at their fair value as established by quotations from applicable national securities
exchanges. Valuations of accrued liabilities, pensiont&ssel annual requirement contributions for the
Plan were performed annually through June 307201
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12.Pension Plans (continued)
(a) Townof PortsmouthRetirement Plan (continued)

Net Pension Liability
The components of the net pension liability of the Pension System at J@td 3@ere as follows:

Total pension liability $ 92,748,476
Plan fiduciary net position (52,916,280
Town's net pension liability $ 39,832,196

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability 57.05%

Actuarial Assumptions

Healthy mortality rates are based on-BRL4 Employee and Healthy Annuitant Mortality Tables with-MP
2014 improvement projections backed out to a base year of 2006 and projected generationally using Sca
SSA-2014 2D from 2006. Disabled rete mortality rates are based on-RIFL4 Healthy Annuitant Mortality

Table with MR2014 improvement projections backed owt base year of 2006 and projected generationally
using Scale SS&014 2D from 2006 and set forwarg&ars.

Long-TermExpectedRateof Return

The longterm expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building- block
method in which beststimate ranges of expected futurd rages of return (expected returnst position

plan investment expensedhimflation) are dev@ped for each major asset class. These ranges are combined
to produce the lonterm expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by
the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expectedmnf2ist estimates of arithmetic real

rates of return for each major asset class included in the pensiatatget asseallocation as of June 30,
2017are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Real Rate of Return
Domestic equities 6.44%
International developed market equities 7.40%
International emerging market equities 9.42%
Core fixed income 2.02%
Real estate 5.00%

91



Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Endedune 30, 207

12.Pension Plans (continued)
(a) Townof PortsmouthRetirement Plan(continued)
Discount Rate

Thediscountrateusedto measureghetotal pensionliability was6.75%.The projectionof cashflows used

to determine the discount rate assumed plan member contributions will be made as the current contribution
rate and that the Town Brtsmouttscontributions will be made as the actuarially determined contribution
rates. Based on thosssumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available
to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, {tegrioegpected

rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to atidgserf projectedbenefitpaymentsto
determinghetotal pensioriiability.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Gmges in lite Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the Pension System, calculated using the dideamint
6.75%, as well as what the Pension System's net pension liability would be if it were calosiated
discount rate that is-fiercentaggoint lower (575%) or lpercentageoint higher (7.75%) than the current
rate

Current
1% Decrease Discount 1% Increase
(5.75%) Rate (6.75%) (7.75%)
Plan's Net Pension Liability $ 52,940,406 $ 39,832,196 $ 29,193,730

Pension Expense and Deferre@utflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 20the Town recognized pension expensexb32,257. At June 30, 2017
theTownreporteddeferred outflows ofesources andeferred inflows of reources related to pensions from
the followingsources:

Deferred Deferred

Ouitflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 1,106,789 $ -
Changes of assumptions 937,539 -

Difference between projected and actual earnings on

plan investments 1,349,791 -
Total deferred outflows / (inflows) $ 3394119 $ -
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12.Pension Plans (continued)
(a) Townof PortsmouthRetirement Plan (continued)
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resourcesdaferied inflows of resources

related to pensions will be recognizedgension expense as follows:
Year ended June 30:

2018 $ 1,727,857
2019 1,727,853
2020 432,153
2021 (493,744,

Thereafter -
$ 3,394,119

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension

Liability Net Position Liability
() (b) @ - ()
Balance as of 7/1/2016 $ 89,361,468 $ 46,929,737 $ 42,431,731
Changes for the year:
Service cost 1,316,275 - 1,316,275
Interest on total pension liability 5,988,522 - 5,988,522
Contributions - employer - 3,955,207 (3,955,207
Contributions - employee - 334,211 (334,211,
Net investment income - 5,647,914 (5,647,914
Benefit payments (3,917,789) (3,917,789) -
Administrative expense - (33,000) 33,000
Net changes 3,387,008 5,986,543 (2,599,535
Balance as of 6/30/2017 $ 92,748,476 $ 52,916,280 $ 39,832,196

(b) EmployeesRetirementSystem Teachers (ERS)
Generallnformation about the PensiorPlan
Plan Description

Certain employees of the Portsmouth Schagpartmenparticipate in a costharing multiple- employer
defined benefit pensioplan - the Employees' Retirement System pladministered byhe Employees'
Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island (System). Undersheostgplan, pension obligations
for employees of akmployers arpooled angblan assets are availablegay thebenefitsof the employees
of any participating employer providimension benefits throughe plan, regardless othe status of the
employer's payment of its pension obligationthe plan.The planprovidesretirement and disability
benefitsanddeathbenefits to plan membeand beneficiaries.
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12.Pension Plans (continued)

(b) EmployeesRetirementSystem Teacherg ERS) (continued)
Generallnformation about the PensiorPlan (continued)

Plan Description(continued)

The System issues a publicly available financial replbat includes financial statements arefjuired
supplementary information fdhe plans. The repomay be obtainedt http://www.ersri.org.

Benefit Provisions

Thelevel of benefits providedbo participants is establishdxy Chapter 3610 ofthe General Laws, whicis
subject to amendment lige General Assembly. Member benefit provisimasy based on service credits
accumulatedt dates specified in various amendmentthieoGeneralLaws outlining minimum retirement
age, benefit accrual rates andxnaum benefitprovisions

In general,membersaccumulate servicereditsfor each year of service subject to maximum benefit
accruals 680%or 75%.For those hiredfterJune30, 2012, thdenefitaccrualrate is1% peryear with a
maximum benefit accrual @&f0%. Members eligible to retire at September 30, 268/ retire with 10

years of service age60 or after 28 years of serviceany ageThe retirement eligibility agencreases
proportionately for other members reflecting years of service and other factors until it aligns with the Social
Security Normal Retirement Age, which appliesanymember withessthan 5 years of senacas ofJuly
1,2012. Members areested after 5 years service.

The plan provide$or survivor'sbenefitsfor service connectedieathand certainump sum deatlbenefits.
Joint and survivor benefit provision options are availablemembers

Cost ofliving adjustments are provided but are currently suspended until the collective plans administered
by ERSRI reach tundedstatus of 80%. Until thplansreachan80% funded statusnterim cost ofliving
adjustments are provided at feggar intevals commencing witkthe plan year endingune30, 2016.

The plan also provides nonservicennecteddisability benefits after five years of service and service
connected disability benefitgith no minimumservice requirement.
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12.Pension Plans (contied)
(b) EmployeesRetirementSystem Teacherg ERS) (continued)
Contributions

The funding policy, as set forth in the General Laws, Sectiet61®, providesfor actuariallydetermined
periodic contributions ttheplan. Forfiscal 2016, Portsmouth SchobDepartmenteachers wereequired to
contribute 3.75% of their annual covered salary, excepeémhersvith twenty or more years of service as
of June30, 2012mustcontributel1%of their annual covered salary. The State thed®ortsmouth School
Departmentarerequired to contributat anactuariallydeterminedate, 40% of whichs to be paid bythe
State and the remaining 60%tgsbe paid by Portsmoutlschool Department. Thateswere 927% and
1349% of annual covered peoll for the fiscal year endetline30, 2016 for the State and Portsmouth School
Department, respectively. The Portsmouth School Departmaritibaed $2,445,691, 2506202
and $2,304,139for thefiscal yearsended Jun80, 20T, 2016 and 205, respectively equalto 100% of the
required contributions fagachyear.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expensand Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferidaflows of
Resources

At June 30, 201,2he Portsmouth School Department repoatkability of $31,826498for its proportionate

share of the net pension liability that reflected a reduction for contributions mahde digte. The amount
recognizedoy the Portsmouth School Department as its proportionate shidrerst pensioriability, the

related state support and the total portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the Portsmout
School Department were allows:

Portsmouth School Departmegabportionateshare of

thenetpensioniability $ 31,826,498
State's proportionate sharetbé net pension liability

associated with the Portsmouth School Departmel 21796478
Total Net Pension Liability $ 53622976

95



Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Endedune 30, 207

12.Pension Plans (continued)
(b) EmployeesRetirementSystem Teacherg ERS) (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expensand Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferidaflows of
Resourcegcontinued)

The net pensiohiability was measured as of June 30, @Qhe measurememiate, and théotal pension

liability used to calculatthe net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30,
2015rolled forwardto June 30,2601 The Portsmouth School Depart me.
liability was based on a projection of the Portsmouth School Depaidihoagitermshare of contributions

to the pension plan relativéo the projected contributions of all participating employers and the state,
actuarially determined. At June 30, Bdlhe PortsmoutiSchoolDepartmehn @roportionwasl1.07%.

Fortheyear enedJune30, 2017 the &tsmouth School Department recognized gross pension expense of
$4,088823 and revenue of 824,506 for supportprovidedby the State. At June 30, 2017 the Portsmouth
SchoolDepartmentreported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensiondrom thefollowing sources:

Deferred Outflow of Resources

Contribution subsequent to contribution date $ 2,445,691
Changes in proportion and differentetween employe
contributions and proportionate share of contribution 227,800
Net difference between project and actual earning:
pension plan investments 3,601,483
Total $ 6,274,974

Deferred Inflow of Resources
Difference between expected amctual experience
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 627,954

Changes of assumptions 659,269
Net difference between project and actual earning:
pension plan investments 1,117,891
Changes in proportion and differences betweraployer
contributions and proportionate share of contribution 2,403,347
Total $ 4,808,461

$2,445,691 reporteds deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resuitorg the
Portsmouth School Departmeaantributions irfiscal year2016subsequenb the measurement date
will be recognizeds areductionof the netpensionliability for theyear endedune30, 2017 Other
amountsreportedas deferredoutflows of resources and deferred inflowsre$ourcegelatedto
pensions willbe recogized in pensioexpenses follows:
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12.Pension Plans (continued)
(b) EmployeesRetirementSystem Teacherg ERS) (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expensand Deferred @itflows of Resources and Deferrddflows of
Resources (continued)

Year Recognition
2018 $ (193249)
2019 (193249)
2020 365696
2021 (47,974)
2022 (638,092)
Thereafter (272,310)
Total $ (979178)

Actuarial Assumptions

The totalpension liabilitywasdetermined using the following actuareasumptionsapplied to alperiods
includedin the measurement:

Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases 3.5% 13.5%
Investment Rate of Return 7.5%

Mortality - maleand female teachers: 9780d 92%respectivelyof rates in aGRS table basedn male
andfemaleteacherexperienceprojectedwith ScaleAA from 2000.

The actuarialassumptions useid the June30, 205 valuation rolled forward tdune 302016 and the
calculation ofthe total pensiorliability at June30, 205 were consistentvith the resultsof an actuaral
experience studyerformedasof June30, 2013.

The longterm expected rate afeturn besestimate orpension plannvestments wadetermined by the
actuaryusing a buildingblock method. The actuary startbdg calculatingbestestimate futureexpected
real rates of retur(expected returnsetof pensiorplaninvestmenexpense anuhflation) for each major
asseftclass, basedn a collectivesummary of capital market expectatidream 35 sources. The Jurfd,
2016 expectedarithmeticreturns oer the long-term (20 years)by assetclass aresummarized irthe
following table
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12.Pension Plans (continued)
(b) EmployeesRetirementSystem Teacherg ERS) (continued)

Actuarial Assumptiongcontinued)

Target Long-Term Expected
Type of Investment Allocation Real Rate of Return
Global Equity: 38.00%
U.S. Equity 6.98%
International Developed 7.26%
International Emerging Markets 9.57%
Equity Hedge Funds 8.00% 4.10%
Private Equity 7.00% 10.15%
Core Fixed Income 15.00% 2.37%
Absolute Return Hedge Funds 7.00% 4.10%
Infrastructure 3.00% 5.58%
Real Estate 8.00% 5.33%
Other Real Return Assets: 11.00%
Master Limited Partnerships 4.97%
Credit 4.97%
Inflation Linked Bonds 1.76%
Cash, Overlay and Money Market 3.00% 0.82%
100.00%

These return assumptions are then weighted biathget asset allocation percentage, factorirgpinelation
effects to develop the overall loagerm expected rate of return bestimate on an arithmetic basis.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability &spsrcent. The projection of cash flows

used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the
current contribution rate and that contributions from the employers will be made at statutorily required
rates, actarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the longerm expected rate of return on pensiomplevestments was applied to all periods of
projected benefippaymentdo determine the total pensibdability.
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12.Pension Plans (continued)

(b) EmployeesRetirementSystem Teacherg ERS) (continued)

Sensitvity of theNet Pension Lidility (Asset) toChanges in tle Discount Rate

The following presents the net pensi@bility (asset) calculated using the discount raté.bjpercent as
well as what the net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discouinatristd-
percemagepoint lower or ipercentaggoint higher than the currerdte.

Current
1% Decrease Discount 1% Increase
6.50% 7.50% 8.50%

Net pension liability as of June 30, 20 $39,302940 $31,826498 $25,705909

PensionPlan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net posgiamailable in the separateissued
ERSRI financial report.

(c) Teachers Defined Contribution PensioRlan

Employees participating in the defined benefit plan with less than 20 years of service as of June 30, 2012,
as described above, also participate in a defined contribution plan authorized by General Law CGhapter 36
10.3. The defined contribution plan is ddished under IRS section 401(a) and is administered by TIAA
CREF. Employees may choose among various investment options available to plan participants. Employees
contribute 5% (7% for teachers not covered by social security) of their annual coveredrshkmployers
contribute betweeth% and 1.5% (between 3% and 3.5% for teachers not covered by social security) of
annual covered salary depending on the employee's total years of service as of June 30, 2012. Employe:
contributions are immediately vedtevhile employer contributions and any investment earnings thereon

are vested after three years of contributory service. Benefit terms and contributions required under the plan
by both the employee and employer are established by the General Laws, wisichjact to amendment

by the GeneraRssembly
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12.Pension Plans (continued)
(c) Teachers Defined Contribution PensioRlan (continued)

Amounts in the defined contribution plan are available to participants in accordance with Internal Revenue
Serviceguidelines for suctplans.

The Portsmouth School Department recognized pension expend@GiZB for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2017.

The System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplemetary information for plans administered by the system. The report may be obtained at
http://www.ersri.org.

(d) TeachersSurvivor Benefits
General Information about the Pension Plan
Plan Description

Certain employees dhe PortsmouttschoolDepartmenparticipatein a costsharingmultiple- employer

defined benefit pension planthe Teachers' Survivors Benefit plarmdministered bythe Employees'

RetiremeniSystem othe Stateof Rhode IslandSystem).Undera costsharingplan, pension obligations
for employees of akmployesare pooled and plan assets are availapay thebenefitsof the employees
of any participatingemployerproviding pensionbenefits through thplan, regardless ofthe status of the
employerspaymentof its pension obligatiomo the plan.The planprovidesa survivor benefit to public
school teacheris lieu of SocialSecuritysince notall schml districtsparticipatein SocialSecurity

The Systemissues gublicly availablefinancial report that includedinancial statementsand required
supplementarinformation forthe plansThe reporimay be obtained &ittp://www.ersri.org.

100


http://www.ersri.org/
http://www.ersri.org/

Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Endedune 30, 207

12.Pension Plan&ontinued)

(d) TeachersSurvivor Benefits(continued)

Eligibility and Plan Benefits

Theplan provides survivor benefito public school teachens lieu of Social Securitysince not alschool
districts participatén theplan. Specific eligibility criteria andheamount of the benefit is subjeaotthe
provisions ofChapterl6-16 of the Rhode Island Generélaws which are subject tamendment byhe
Gener al Assembl y. Spouse, p aare @ayabkqllowihcatimeiddatirof & n d
memberA spouse shall be entitled benefits upomttainingtheage of sixty (60) years. Childrefsenefits
are payableto the child, including a stepchild or adopted childof a deceased membertife child is
unmarried andinder the age afighteen (18) years twenty-three(23) years and aull time student, and
wasdependent upon thmember at the timef themember'sdeath. Family benefits ar@rovided if at
thetimeoftheme mb e r 6 the stireiangspousehasin hisor hercare achild of the deceasadember
entitled tochild benefits Parents benefits apayable tahe parenbr parentsof adeceased membérthe
member did not leava widow, widower, or child who could eveiqualify for monthly benefits on the
member's wages and tparent has reached thge of 60 years, has not remarried, sgwkivedsupport
from the member.

In Januarya yearly cosbf-living adjustment fospouse'denefits is paid and based on the anisoalal
securityadjustment.

Survivors are eligibldor benefitsif the member hasiade contribution$or at leastsix months priorto
death orretirement.

The TSB plan provides benefitgsedn the highest salaat the timeof retirementof the teacherBenefits
are @yable in accordance withefollowing table:
Basic Monthly

Highest Annual Salary Spouseds B
$17,000 or less $750
$17,001 to $25,000 $850
$25,001 to $33,000 $1,000
$33,001 to $40,000 $1,125
$40,001 and over $1,250
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12.PensiorPlans (continued)

(d) TeachersSurvivor Benefits(continued)

Eligibility and Plan Benefits

Benefits payable tohildrenandfamilies areequal to thespousabenefitmultiplied by the
percentagdelow:

Parentand Parentand One Child Two Children  Three or Dependent
One Child  Two or more Alone Alone more children Parent
children Alone
150% 175% 75% 150% 175% 100%

Contributions

The contribution requirements of activmployees and thparticipating schoodistricts were
established undeChapterl6-16 of the Rhodésland General Laws, whicimay be amendedy
the General Assembly. The cost of the benefits provided byldreare two percent (2%) of the
member'sannualsalary up toput not exceedinganannualsalaryof $9,600; onéhalf (1/2) of the
cost iscontributedoy the membeby deductionsrom his or her salary, and the othiealf (1/2) is
contributed angbaid by the respectivechooldistrict bywhich the member is employedhese
contributions are in addition to the contributioeguired for regular pensiohenefits.

ThePortsmoutlSchoolDepartment contribute®22,538 $24,622and$22,815for the fiscal years
ended Jun80, 2017, 2016 and2015, respectivelyequalto 100% of the required contributions for
each year.

PensionLiabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources

At June30, 2.7, the Portsmouth School Department reported an ass&8817,161 for its
proportionate share ttfie netpension asset related to its pagation in TSB. The netpension
asset was measured as of June 306,20 measuremeriai, and the total pensiolmbility
used to calculate theet pensionasset was determindxy an actuarial valuation as of June 30,
2015 rolled forward toJune30, 2016. The Portsmouth School Department proportion of the net
pension asset was baseditsrshare of contributions to the TSB for fiscal year 2015 relative to
the total contributions of all participating employers for tietal year. At June 30, 261the
Portsmouth School Department proportion B&3%.
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